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Cellnex UK Limited

Strategic Report
for the year ended 31 December 2020

This strategic report has been prepared for the Group (Celinex UK, Celinex) as a whole and therefore gwves greater
emphasis 10 those matters which are significant to Cefinex UK Limited and its subsidiary undentakings when viewed as a
whole. {t is considered the Graup all the companies ncluded in the Cellnex carporate structure in United Kingdom

REVIEW OF THE BUSINESS

Cellnex UK Limited is a subsidiary company of Celinex Telecom SA. Europe's leading operator of wireless
tefecommunications and broadcasting infrastructures with a portfoho of sites localed in Span, Haly, Netherlands. France,
Switzeriand. the United Kingdom and ireland As it expands its presence across the termitery, Cellnex Telecom § A (Cellnex
Telecarn} alse wmcreases (s pacticlio of services In thes regard, Telecom infrastructure Services continues 1o be the service
with the greatest relative weight In the group's 2020 Income statement, as a consequence of the acquisition and integration
of new ielecom sites. Telecom Infrastruciure Services is also the mamn business of the company n the United Kingdom

Celinex's Telecom business model focuses nn providing servicés 1o mobile network operators (MNOs), broadcasters and
other public and private companies acting as 2 neytral European telecammunications nfrastructure operator

Celinex Telecom has strategically located infrastructure to offer maxmum coverage in both urban and rural settings,
providing a service with a tugh level of quahty, avadability and netwark stability thanks ta appropriate chtmate contral,
assisted power supply systems and automatic alarm detechon Systems

In this way Celinex Telecom offers co-location services in its infrastructure to mobile phone operators so that they can
nstall their witeless broadcasting and telecommunications equipment there Celinex Telecom facilitates sharing between
the major telephone operators, which affows far the maximum and efficient use of the instaffed network capacity, minimising
redundancy and duplication. Thus. this model 1s charactensed by s reduced impact and presence in the urban area. and
therefore improves efficient use of resources such as energy which in turn reducas the carban footpeint

Moreovar, Celinax Telecam has set up a iarge retwork af nodes, extenswe coverage by means of radia links and & prvate
connechon to the Arnazon Cloud infrastructure to oier the most advanced data transportation and hoshng services

Cellnex Telecom's business mode! is based on innovation, efficiency. sustanabity, independence. and quaily
management to create value for s sharehoiders, customers, employees and all stakeholders

Cellnex UK Limited ia the Parent of a Group in which + is the majonty shareholder of the Cellnex companies registered in
the United Kingdam, heading the different business hines and operations deveicped in this country  For detais of the
significant acquisition in the year, please refar to corparate acquisitions below

PERFORMANCE AND KEY PERFORMANCE iNDICATORS (KPI'S)

Our kay performance Indicators {'KPls') reflect both a measure of the financial performance and long-term growth of the
business. and the level of service provided t¢ our customers The Company performed in ing with expectations and 18
expected to cantinue to generate positive EBITDA and cash flow from aperations

The key measure of the Company's performance is EBITDA. EBITDA 1s a non-GAAP measure and refers 1o earmings
before nterest, tax, degreciation, and amortisation

A reconcihation of the reported EBITDA 10 the financal staterments s provided below

T T3 Dec2020 31 Dec 2013
— 5 S . I
Operating {loss)/ profit (28.741) (1.707)
Depreciation of property plant and equipment (33,598 972)
Amartisation of indangible assets 56 635 7 281
EBITOA _el1sz _ asat

EBITDA for the year ended 30 December 202015 £61,792k (2019 £6.527k) driven by the acquisttion and integration in the
Celinex UK Group of the On Tower UK companies
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Cellnex UK Limited

Strategic Report
for the year ended 31 December 2020 - continued

The Group has mat all contractual milestones during the year and continues to engage with all contract stakeholders o
meet future milestones.

The loss and total comprenensive income far the financial year was £52,672k i contrast to 2019 which was a loss for the
year of £1,944k The Company has total assets of £3,211.596k while in 2019 had £174,287k. and net current ltabilities of
£60 957k against net current assets of £35,506k in 2019 The significant changes in the numbers of the company are due
acquisition of On Tower, as noted in the principal activities section in the Directors’ Repart. During the year ended
31/12/2020 the Company has generated revenue of £118,519k compared to £13 867k in 2018

The financial accounts developed refers ta the following periods
e 2020 Inciuding the Celinex UK perimeter for the whole year and § months (July-December) of the On Tower UK

penmeter.
« 2018 Including the Cellnex UK penmeter for the whole year

CORPORATE ACQUISITIONS

Acquisition of On Tower UK (previously known as Argiva Services Limited) and subsidiaries

Over the last year, the Group's corporate structure has undergane significant changes. which have clearly and
unequivocally contnbuted 1o the company’s growth. On 8 Octeber 2013. Celinex Telecom and Cellnex UK entered info an
agreement with Argiva Holdings Limited, a company of the Argiva Group, for the sale and purchase of 100% of the issued
and paid-up sharg capital of Argiva Services Limted The transaction was completed on & July 2020, foliowing the
completicn of several prerequisites

Pursuant to the Argiva Acquisition, the Group has acquired ownership of approximately 7400 sites and the nghts fo market
of approximately 800 sites As of July 2026, the Group paid an aggregate consideratien of approximately GBP 2 billion in
connection with the Argiva Acquistion. The Group has financed the Arqiva Acguisition with available cash (from a
combinatian of the net proceeds from the offering of shares executed on § November 2019 and other sources) and a GBP
€00 mullion term loan facility entered into by Celinex UK and guaranteed by Celinex, wih a S-year builet maturity

In July 2020, more than 247 employees joined the Group and the shared Services area was created, supporting both
organisations After a short period. the On Tower UK team was integrated into the previous team in the UK and a single
joint arganisational structure was mplemented

A detailed integration programme was established for implementation during the second half of 2020 and 2021 Dunng the
first phase of integration employees were drafted into the group, bringing them on board and providing them all reievant
tocls (Intranet, Office accounts, etc.) All other relevant communications were made on the fransaction 10 customers
supplers, and landlords and the Cellnex UK website was launched

Moreaver, the Group's financial and operational reporting model was introduced and a series of assessments (Operations,
iT) performed, with an analysis gap made between the model used by Arqiva and the Cellnex Industrial model and the
associated implementation plan

Additionaily. at commercial level, product line training sessions were delivered to the local team to increase the portfolio of
products and deploy Salesforce, giving them a better view of the UK market opportunities. In Legal & Regulatory
affairs, the Cellnex modet is already in place (powers of attorney, board members, insurances. etc )

The team is currently working to implement the industnial model at Finance level, the On Tower UK informaticn has already
been included in SAP; and administration and accounting services are being outsourced to the group's partner (PRIME
project) to be achieved by the first haif of 2021 On the Operations side, the Agora 100l 1s being implernented with new
processes to be defined by the first half of 2021. Likewrse. a renegotiation plan for income has already been defined and
will be implemented in the beginning of 2021 Various other IT projects are also ongoing.

Regarding HR, consuitation processes toak place for office moves. the job levelling project was campleted and the career
development assessments and approach to employee objectives (MBO Process) began The UK headquarters office in
Reading was selected and empioyees have already been allocated.

As a result of the acquistion, six companies have been integrated into the Cellnex society structure: On Tower UK Limited.
On Tower 1 UK Limited, On Tower 2 UK Limited, On Tower 3 UK Limited, On Tower 4 UK Limited. On Tower & UK Limited
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Celinex UK Limited

Strategic Report

for the year ended 31 December 2020 - continued

Acquisition of CK Hutchinson

Furthermore, during 2020, the company and CK Hutchisop announced a series of agreements 1n winch Celinex will acquire

¢ 5,000 tetecommunications towers and sites that CK Hutchison currently owns. The transactions include the roil-out of up
to 600 sites over the next eight years The acquisthon 1s expected to complete in 2022 subject to regulatory appraval,

CORPORATE STRUCTURE

After the latest acquisitions the company's organization structure is as follows
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The principal nsks and uncertainties cof the Company are consisten with those of the Group and are set aut in full in Celinex’
annual report. a copy of which 15 available in the Group's website at www cellnextelecom com

cOoViID-19

Coranavirus disease 2018 ('COVID-19 ) was first reported in late 2015 and has since developed intc a global pandemic
The Drrectors have considered the impact an the Company of the pandemic and concluded that gven there will continue
to be a demand far the services provided by the Company and cansidenng the Company has a mixed customer base and
operates in an industry not mpacted by COVID-18 ¢ ig nat expected that the Campany will have ta expect materal adverse
changes in its activity
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Cellnex UK Limited

Strategic Report
for the year ended 31 December 2020 - continued

Risks related to the environment in which the Group operates and risks stemming from the specific nature of its
businesses.

Through the Telecom Infrastructure Services segment, the mamn business actwity. the Company facilitates access to the
global telecommunications environment, by means of prowding access to telecoms through its connectivity services, as
well as the related passive and active infrastructure to external MNOs

The Telecom Infrastructure Services segment s tughly dependent on demand Customer use of the Group's
communications infrastructures can be affected by seme factors as

+ Increased use of network sharing. roaming or resale arrangements

» Increased sharing initiatives among MNOs. raaming or resale arrangements

+  The ability and willingness ot MNOSs ta maintain or increase capial expenditures on telecommunication infrastructures

»  The evolution of the advertising business’ revenue in the media sector

«  The evolution of public internet

+ A decrease in cansumer demand for wireless telecom services due to economic, political and market/regulatary
conditions

As a result of these factors, the Group's customers may scale back their demand for its services and there could be
underutilisation of the Group's communications infrastructure. To reduce exposure to risks stemming from the environment
in which it operates, the Group pursues a selective international expansion plan with policies of diversification and growth

Risk of increasing competition

The Group may experience al any tme increased competition in certam areas of achvity from established and new
competitors One example 1$ the entry of American Tawer another infrastructure provider. into the European market

Increasing competition for the acquisition of infrastructure assets could make the acquisition of high-qualty assets
significantty more costly. in the current environment of low rates. and taking into consideration the Group’s business nature,
with long term contracts and fixed fees that are normally inflation-linked. more and more infrastructure funds and private
equity firms are showing appetite towards these kind of assets. Some competitors are larger than the Group and may have
greater financial resources {such as KKR), while other competitors may apply investment critena with lower return on
nvestment requirements

If the Group. 1s unable to compete effectively with Its competitors, or anticipate or respond to customer needs. it could lose
existing and potential customers, reducing its operating margins and having a material adverse effect on the business.

Other risks

These are some imponant risks considered by the Company. some further risks are set out in full in Cellnex Telecom S.A
annual report, a copy of which is available on the Group's website at www.cellnextelecom.com

SECTION 172 STATEMENT

For the FY2Q accounting year, the Companies (Miscellaneous Reporting) Regulations 2018 (the “Regulations’) requires
that campanies meeting certain thresholds report on directors’ application of section 172 (duty to promote the success of
the Company) as set out In the Companies Act 2006, along with stakeholder and employee engagement.

The Companies Act 2006 sets oul general duties owed by directors to a company, including a list of matters 1o which the
directors must have regard. which are in s 172(1}a) to (f} During FY20, the directors have exercised their duties. such as
considering proposals from the Management Board and governing the company on behalf of the shareholders, in
accordance with these requirements

The ponts detailed in the Section 172 Statement. and the Group compliance with them, are detaled as follows.

a) the likely consequences of any decision in the long term;

Celinex Telecom, Europe’s largest independent operator of wireless infrastructure, announced it has reached an agreement
to acquire Argiva's Telecoms division for a total consideration of ¢ GBP 2.0 bn. As a result of the acquisition of the company
by the Cellnex Group, completed on 8 July 2020, Argiva Services Limited changed its corporate name to On Tower UK
Lirnited
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Cellnex UK Limited

Strategic Report
for the year ended 31 December 2020 - continued

The transaction invplved the acquisition of cwnership of ¢.7,400 sites and the rights to market of c. 300 additional sites. all
of them spread acrass the UK As a result, Cellnex has become the iargest independent operator of wireless infrastructure
in the UK. The deal involved concessions to use street infrastructure as iecations for tefecom sites in 14 London boroughs
This 15 a kay element for further extension and network densificatton ahaad af the 5G rok out

Celinex UK strategy is in accordance with the Cellnex Telecom strategy. based on a model of organic and inarganic growth
Cellnex' business madel is based an innovaton, efficiency sustainabilty. independence, and quality management to create
value for its shareholders, customers employees and all stakeholders. On Tower UK s currently the most significant entity
within the Celinex UK group

b} the interasts of the company's émployees;

In the acquisition. more than 247 empioyees joined the Celinex Group and the UK Sharsd Services area was created
following the year &nd as pant of the acquisition of On Tower by Cellnex UK, supporting both arganisations Afler a short
penod, the On Tower UK team was integrated into the previous team n the UK and a single joint organisational structure
was implemanted

The pecple of the company are essential for Cellnex's success and are therefore a fundamental pillar of the Growth strategy,
together with its processes and IT Toals

To ensure that the Company has the best talent and culture, Celinex has built a People Strategy underpmned by 3 pillars
culture, ieadership, and talent

The first pilar s culture. understood as a constructive culture budt on the Campany s core values that promate collaboration
and cohesion to achieve jts ambihous goals

The second piliar 1s leadersip The Company is convinced that & great team s not a group of peaple that work {ogether
but a group of people that trust each other, that values all voices and promotes equal opportunities for everyone To achieve
this, Celinex promotes that everyone 15 a leader which means that everyone must lead themsetwes first. learning,
performing and contributing

The thirg pilar is talent. Celinex needs to ensure that the team has the nght capabiities and does this by promoting two
mam mindsets The first involves a Jearning enmaronment where we leam every day, all the ime - in short, a lifelong learning
approach The second mindset involves self-leadership- encouraging everyone to be the best versian of themselves

In line with the process of cultural transformation and integration in which the Group 15 currently immersed, Celinex
understands diversity as one of the key elements of its business model Diversity and inclusion bring unigue perspectives
10 the campany andg help to create a respectful and inclusive work environment that meets the expectations of different
groups, in turn improving employee performance. attracting and retaining the talent of the best professionals. and ultimately
impraving the company performance

¢) the need (o foster the company’s business relationships with suppllers, customers and others;

Celinex Telecom and the Group has the objectives of guaranteeing that best practices are used in the performance of its
senvices Al praducts and services are continuously reviewed 10 improve their health and safety profiles. with regard 10
installahon and operation by employees. and possible effects on customers

In 2020 the relatignship with cuslomers was especially impartant since Gelinex's services have been essential during the
COVID-19 pandemic. The primary objective was to respond to ¢nsis situations in the Cellnex group by guaranteeing the
provision of cntical services. a task carned out with a totally satisfactory resu't

The Net Promoter Score (NPS) systam 1s used 1n Ceflnex UK and for 2020 the annual Customer Satisfaction Survey
showed improved engagement. Particularly highlighted were significant improvements in transparency. cammercial
flexibiity and operatipnal delivery

The Giabal Resources Procurement area 1s tasked with provicing strategic value t0 Cellnex group stakehokiers by
managing purchases in accordance with Cellnex s industnal model The maodel promotes efficiency, innovation,
transparency sustainabiity and quality purchasing as levers 10 provide Celinex's customer care services with the ngnt
balance befween cost and performance while respecting corporate pohcies

Celinex nas a purchasing meodel baseo on decentralised purchasing with point of control across the process The
purchasing model has three axes

s+ Purchase Plan Celinex has defined a purchasing strategy for key tenders, seeking purchasing efficiency by managing
glohal tenders, anticipating purchasing processes and obtaining competitive agreements
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Cellnex UK Limited

Strategic Report
for the year ended 31 December 2020 - continued

¢ Purchase Management. The company has estaplished guidelines for the entire purchasing process. frarm the detection
of the purchasing need and the Purchase Order release from receipt of the service or product by Celinex. to signing of
the contract.

«  Supplier Relahonship Management. The company has designed a relational madel with its different corporate areas,
including procurement policy. group purchase pian supplier management framework agreements, cross-sectional
purchases and non-fransversal purchases.

d) the impact of the company's operations on the community and the environment;

In 2019, Celinex Telecom semor management approved the Strategic Sustainability Plan (2019-2023) The Plan raises the
level of the company's responsibilty in the field of sustainabihity towards becoming a leader in environmental management
through eleven lines linked to the United Natuns Sustainable Development Goals (SDG).

* The Strategic and Global Obyectives of the Sustainability Plan are

¢ Lead the Sustainability indexes of the telecommunications sector

¢ Reduce carbon footprint by 30% by 2025, 50% by 2030 and 100% by 2050.
s Improve the Climate Change resilience of infrastructure

Accompiishment of these goals will be coardinated from Corporate and will be implemented in all geographical areas
including of course, Cellnex UK and their recent corporate acquistions.

e) the desirability of the company maintaining a reputation for high standards of business conduct; and

All activities performed by the Cellnex group are based on a solid culture of comphance, ethics and integrity to which the
Management and the Board of Directors of Cellnex Telecom are firmly committed. With the aim of continuously improving
its performance i the field of compliance. the Cellnex group has put in place a series of bedies, policies and control
mechanisms n the area of compliance, amang which we would highlight:

e The estabhshment of the Committee of Ethics and Compillance which is also the Body Responsible for criminal
fulfiment of the Cellnex group.

= The adoption of compliance policies, such as the Code of Ethics and the Prevention of Corrupticn Procedure

s The establishment of control mechanisms of the compliance model, such as the Ethical Chanrel and the Disciplinary
System

f) the need to act fairly between members of the company.

Cellnex Telecom Group and its subsidiaries promotes dialogue with its employees and their legal representatives, such as
workers councils and employees’ representatives, informing, consulting and negotiating accordingly with them,

In the UK, there is the Cellnex UK Colleague Board (the CCB), whose am Is to represent the views and thoughts of
colleagues across the business in all major people related developments and decisions The CCB follows a “2-way
approach’. meaning sometimes it will involve consulting with colleagues on proposals and other times it will involve
presenting feedback and new ideas gathered from colleagues Some of the topics that the CCB may be involved in shaping
include.

Colleague Engagement plans

Equity, diversity, and inclusion implementation acress the organisation
Proposing changes to HR policies

Promote of learning and development across the organisation

Internal communication

Championing of Health and Safety

Wellbeing of colleagues at work

Formal consultation processes
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Celinex UK Limited

Strategic Report
for the year ended 31 December 2020 - continued
FUTURE DEVELOPMENTS

It 1s the intention of the Company tc invest in its business in accordance with the strategy as set out in the Cellnex Telecom
S A annual repart. contmually increasing its presence in the market through organic and nargamic growth,

The Company will be totally focused on increasing its market share by acquinng high quality assets, adding new customers

to its portfolio, maintaining those that have contributed to reach the leader position In the European market and trying to
mitigate all the nsks identified.

Approved by the Beard and signed on its behalf by.

David Whiliam Crawford
Directer
14 tanuary 2022
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Cellnex UK Limited

Directors’ Report
for the year ended 31 December 2020

The directors present their annual repart on the affairs of the Group. together with the financial statements and auditor's
report, for the year ended 31 December 2020.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company who were in the office during the year and up to the date of signing the financial statements
except for noted were

A J Woodward

A M Molins

D W Crawford (appointed on 26/06/2020)
P C Colins

A A Villamann

DIVIDENDS

The Company has not declared. proposed. or pad any dividend for the year to 31 December 2020 {2019 £nd)

DIRECTOR'’S INDEMNITIES

The Company has made qualfying third-party indemnity provisions for the benefit of its directors. which were made during
the year and remain in force at the date of this report

POLITICAL CONTRIBUTIONS

The Company has not made any contnbution ta any political arganization during the year (2019. none) analysed in these
consclidated accounts

DISABLED EMPLOYEES

Applications for employment by disabled persons are always fully considered, beanng in mind the respective aptitudes and
abilities of the applicant concerned In the event of members of staff becoming disabled. every effort is made to ensure that
their employment with the Group continues and the appropnale training arranged I is the palicy of the Group that the
training, career development and promotion of a disabled person. should as far as possible. be identical to that of a person
who does not suffer from a disabiiity.

ENGAGEMENT WiTH EMPLOYEES

The people of the company are essential for Cellnex's success and are therefore a fundamental pillar of the Growth strategy,
together with its processes and IT Tools

To ensure that the Company has the best talent and culture, Cellnex has built a People Strategy underpinned by 3 pillars,
culture, leadership, and lalent The first piltar 1s culture. understood as a constructive culture built on the Company s core
values, that promotes collaboration and cohesion to achieve its ambitious goals

The company is convinced that a great team is not a group of peopie that work together but a group of people that trust
each other, that values all voices and promoles equal apportunities for everyone. To achieve this, Celinex promotes that
everyone is a leader. which means that everyone must lead themselves first, learning, perfarming. and contributing

The third pillar is talent. Cellnex needs 1o ensure that the team has the nght capabiities and does this by promaoting two
main mindsets The first Invalves a learning environment where we leam every day, all the tme —in short, a lifelong learning
approach. The second mindset involves self-ieadership- encouraging everyone to be the best version of themselves. The
company is providing toois to all employees ta design and launch an Individual Development Plan yearly and at any fime

In line with the process of cultural transformation and integration 1n which the Group is currently immersed, Cellnex
understands diversity to be one of the key efements of its business mode!. Diversity and inclusion bring unique perspectives
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Cellnex UK Limited

Directors’ Report
for the year ended 31 December 2020 — continued

to the company and help to create a raspectful and inclusive work environment thal meets the expectations of different
groups. in turn improving employee performance. attracting and retaining the talent of the best professionals and ultimately
improving the company perfarmance.

In the acquisition. more than 247 employees jomned the Cellnex Group and the UK Shared Services area was created
supporting both crganisaticns After a short period, the On Tower UK tearn was mtegrated into the previous team in the UK
and a single joint organisational structure was implemented

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group's activities expose it to a number of financial nsks. including cash fow risk, credit nisk and liquidity nsk. The use
of financial 1nstruments 1s governed by the Group's policies approved by the board of directors which provide written
principles on the use of financial denvatives o manage these risks The Group does not use denvative financial instruments
for specuiative purposes

Cash flow risk

The Group's actvities expose it primanly to the financial risks of changes in foreign currency exchange rates. Interest
bearing assets and liabilties are held at fixed rates to ensure certainty of cash fiows

Credit risk

The Group's principal financial assets are bank halances and cash. trade and other receivables. and investments. The
Group’s credit nisk Is primarily atinbutable to its trade receivables. The amounts presented in the balance sheet are net of
afowances far doubtful receivables. An allowance for impairment 1s made where there is an identifiad loss evert which
based on previbus expenence, is evidence of a reduction in the recoverabity of the cash flows

The credit risk on iquid funds and denvative financial instruments 1s imited because the counterparties are banks with high
credit-ratings assigned by international credit-rating agencies

The Group has na significant concentration of credit risk. with exposure spread over a large number of counterparties and
customers

Liquidity risk

In order to maintain liquidity to ensure that encugh funds are avaiable for ongaing operatans and fulure developments
the company uses a mixture of long-term and short-term debt finance Further details regarding liquidity nsk can be found
in the Statement of accounting policies in the financiat statements

BUSINESS CONTINUITY

The company considers there to be no nsks that could threaten i1s actvity and the maintenance of its current revenue-
generating assets

GOING CONCERN

The Company adopts the Going Concem basis in preparing its inancial stalements. based an the letter of fnancial support
covering twelve months from the signing of the Annual Report fram its ultmate parent undertaking, Celinex Telecom (as at
the date of signing).

The loss and tatal comprehensive income far the financial year was £52.672k in cantrast to 2018 which was a lass for the
year of £1 044k The Company has total assels of £3.211.596k while 10 2019 had £174.287k, and net current habilities of
£60 957k against net current asseis of £35.606k 1n 2019 The significant changes in the numbers of the company are due
acquisition of On Tower, as noted n the prncipal activities section in the Directors Report. During the year ended
31/12/2020 the Company has generated revenue of £118.519k compared to £13.867k 1n 2019

it leads the Director of the Group and Company {0 be confident that they wdl have adequate resources to continue In
cperational existence for the foreseeable future As pant of this assessment we have conswlered the impact of COVID-19.
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Cellnex UK Limited

Directors’ Report
for the year ended 31 December 2020 — continued

and, based on the nature of the business. we do not believe it will have an overall material adverse effect on our financial
position or cash flows

STREAMLINED ENERGY AND CARBON REPORTING (SECR)

Exemptions have been taken in these Group financial statements in relation to SECR Reporting as included in uttmate
parent, Cellnex Telecom S A Annual Report.

ENGAGEMENT WITH STAKEHOLDERS

Engagement with employees, customers, suppliers, and the wider community 1s discussed on page 9 n the context of how
the Directors’ performed the duties imposed by section 172 of the Companies Act 2006.

Future developments can be found in the Strategic Report and form part of the Directors Report by cross reference

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

Awarded connectivity contract in Brighton Mainline route

Celinex UK has been awarded the 25-year concessionary contract by Network Rail to provide uninterrupted cellular internet,
mobile reception and fibre services along the length of the Brighton Mainline route Celinex UK will act as the neutral host
and provide the infrastructure to deliver continuous mobile connectivity The service will provide targeted coverage and
capacity for the UK Mobile Network Operators (MNOs)

The Bnghton Mainling service runs 51 miles from London to the South Coast through some of the UK's most densely
populated arsas Mobile internet and connecivity between London and Brighton varies from a streng signal to no
connectivity at all because of the topography and the many tunnels and cuttings alang the route

Cellnex UK will provide

» Towers that will aliow broadcasting of mobile signal along the raiiway corridor,

« A small numper of base station hotels (equipment rooms) within proximity to the raitway to house telecoms equipment.

+ High-capacity fiber running from Victona and London Bridge via East Croydon to Brighton, and

+ Bespoke radio equipment to provide uninterrupted coverage in the main London stations as well as the tunnels and
cuttings along the route.

By improving customers' travel experience and encouraging more people to travel by train rather than by car, the project
will help reduce traffic in and around the M25, M23 and AZ3, leading to cleaner air.

AUDITOR

Each of the persons wha 15 a director at the date of approval of this report confirms that.

= 50 far as the director is aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the Company's auditor 1s unaware; and

« the director has taken all the steps that he/she ought to have taken as a director in order to make himself‘herself aware

of any relevant audit infarmation, and to estabiish that the Company's auditor is aware of that informaticn

This confirmation 15 given and should be interpreted in accordance with the provisions of s418 of the Companies Act 2006
Delote LLP have been deemed re-appointed under section 487 of the 2006 Act
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Cellnex UK Limited

Directors’ Report
for the year ended 31 December 2020 — continued

STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES

The directors are responsible for prepanng the Annual Report and the financial statements in accordance with appiicatle
faw and regulations

Company law requres the directars to prepare financial statements for each financal year. Under that law the directors
have elected to prepare the financial statements In accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice (Unred Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicabie law) Under company law the directors must not approve
the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company
and of the profit or 'oss of the Company for that period

In preparing these financial statements the directors are required to.

¢ select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently

+ make judgements and accounting estirates that are reasonable and prudent, and

+ prepare the financral statements on the going concemn basis unless it 1s inappropriate 10 presume that the Company will
confinue In business

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting recerds that are sufficient to show and explan the
Company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any ime the financial position of the Company and
enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006 They are also responsible for
safeguardmg the assets of the Company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud
and cther mregufanties

The directors are responsible far the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial infarmation included on the

Company's website. Legislation in the United Kingdom goveming the preparatian and dissemnation of financia! statements
may differ from legislation in other jurisdictons

APPROVED FOR ISSUE BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS:

David Willam Crawford
DOwrectar
14 jJanuary 2022
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Cellnex UK Limited

independent auditor’s report
for the year ended 31 December 2020

Independent auditor’s report to the members of Cellnex UK Limited
Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion

In our opinion

« the financeal statements of Celinex UK Limited (the ‘parent campany') and its subsidiaries (the 'group’) give a true
and fair view of the state aof the group's and of the parent company's affairs as at 31 December 2020 and of the
group's loss for the year then ended:

+ the group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with international accounting standards
in conformity with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and Internationat Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRSs) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board {IASE},

+ the parent company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice. including Financial Reporting Standard 101 "Reduced Disclosure
Framework™ and

= the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006

We have audited the financial statements which comprise:

¢ the consolidated income statement.

+ the consolidated and parent company balance sheets,

» the consolidated and parent company statements of changes in equity.
» the consolidated cash flow statement;

» the statement of accounting policies; and

» the related notes 1 to 27 and parent company notes 1 to 8.

The financiat reporting framewark that has been applied in the preparation of the group financial statements is applicatle
law, intemational accounting standards in conformity with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and IFRSs as
1ssued by the IASB The financial reporting framework that has been appied in the preparation of the parent company
financial statements 1s applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including Financtal Reperting Standard
101 "Reduced Disclosure Framework (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing {UK) {ISAs (UK)) and appliicatle law
Qur responsibilities under those slandards are further described in the auditor's respansibilities for the audit of the
financial statements section of our report.

We are independent of the group and the parent company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant
to our audit of the financial statements in the UK including the Financial Reporting Council's (the 'FRC's’) Ethical
Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilites in accardance with these reguirements. We beleve that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion

Conclusions relating to going concern
In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the directors’ use of the going cancemn basis of accounting
in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed we have notdentified any matenal uncertanties relating to events or conditions
that individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the group's and parent company's abllity to continue as a
going concern for a period of at least twelve months from when the financial statements are guthorised for issue

Our responsibilities and the responsibilttes of the directors with respect to going concern are described in the reievant
sections of this report.

Other information

The other information comprises the infarmation included in the annual report, other than the financial statements and
our auditer's repart thereon. The directors are responsible for the other information within the annual report Our opinan
on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except ta the extent otherwise explicitty stated in
our repart, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion therearn.

Our responsibility 18 to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materaily
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the course of the audit, or otherwise appears to
be matenally misstated. If we identify such matenal inconsistencies cr apparent material misstatements, we are required
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Celinex UK Limited

Independent auditor’s report
as at 31 December 2020

to determine whether this gives nse to a matenal misstatement in the financial statements themselves. If based on the
wark we have performed we conclude that there is a material misstaterment of this other informatan, we are required to
report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard

Responsibilities of directors

As explained more fully in the directors’ respansibilities statement, the directors are responsible for the preparation of the
financial statements and for being satisfieg that they give a true and fair view, and for such inteenal control as the directors
determine s necessary 10 enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from matenal misstatement,
whether due to fraud or ercor

in preparing the financial statements. the directors are responsible for assessing the group's and the parent company's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing as applicable. matters related te geing concern and using the going
concern basis of accaunting unless the directors either Intend to iquidate the group or the parent company of to cease
aperations, or have no realistic altemative but to do so

Auyditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our abjectives are 1o obtan reasonable assurance about whether the finangial statements as a whole are free from
materal misstatement. whether due to fraud or error, and 0 ssue an auditar's repert that includes aur opinion
Reascpable assurance is a high leve) of assurance bul 1s not a2 guarantee that an audnt conducted in accerdance with
1SAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists Missiaternents can arise from fraud or error and are
cansidered material if individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to nfluence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements

A further descriphion of our responsibilites for the audit of the financial statements s located on the FRC's website at.
www fre org uk/auditorsrespons:buities This description forms part of our auditor s report.

Extant to which the audit was considered capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud

Irregularities. including fraud, are instances of nan.complianice with laws and regulations We design procedures in hine
with our responsibilites. outhned above. 1o detect material misstatements in respect of irregularities, including fraud The
extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, mncluding fraud is detailed below

We considered the nature of the group's industry and its contro! environment and reviewed the group's documentation
of their policies and procedures relabing to fraud and compliance with laws and regulatons We alsp enguired of
management about thewr own identification and assessment of the nsks of irregularies

We obtained an understanding of the legal and regulatory frameworks ihat the group operates In, and identified the key

faws and reguiations that

+ had a direct effect an the determination of matenal amounts and disclosures in the financial statements These
included UK Companies Act. pensions legislation tax legislation. and

« do not have a direct effect on the financial statements but compliance with which may be fundamental to the
group’'s abilty to operate or to avoid a material penaity These inciuded General Data Protection Regulation
{GDPR), anti-bribery and corruption legislation and employment laws.

We discussed among the audit engagement feam including relevant internal specialists such as tax valuations and |7
regarding the opportunities and incentives that may exist within the organisation for fraud and how and where fraud might
aceur In the financial statements

As a resuit of performing the above. we (dentified the greatest patentia! for fraud in the following areas. and gur specific

procedures performed 1o address {it / them} are descnbed below

+ revenue recogniion in relaton to significant framework customers are pan of logng-term complex agreements
therefare there Is judgement involved In ensunng all elements are accounted for appropriately We tested the
reconciliations performed by testing a sample of reconciling items and agreesing to invoices and subsequent receipts
These reconciiations are subsequently agreed with the custorner o ensure all revenue had been recorded m the
penod in line with the agreements in place We also reviewed the contracts to identdy any key terms that had not
been included.

+ business combination -we consider ine key assumptions used within the purchase price allocatan (PPA) in relation
to the acquisition of On Tower 1o be a significant nsk With the assistance of our valuation specialists we have tested
hoth the appropriateness and applcation of managements metnodology used in the valuation models for newly
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Cellnex UK Limited

Independent auditor’s report
as at 31 Dccember 2020

identified intangibles We have also utiised our specialists including tax in assessing the appropriateness of other
key Judgements used within the PPA

In common with all audits under ISAs {UK). we are aiso required ta perform specific procedures o respond to the nisk of
management override. In addressing the risk of fraud through management override of controls, we tested the
appropriateness of journal entries and other adjustments. assessed whether the judgements made i making accounting
estimates are indicative of a potental bias, and evaluated the business rationale of any significant transactions that are
unusual or putside the normal course of business.

In addition ta the above our procedures to respond to the nsks identified included the following.

« reviewing financial statement disclosures by testing to supporting documentation to assess compliance with
provisions of relevant faws and regulations described as having a direct effect on the financial statements.

+ performing analytical procedures to identify any unusual or unexpected relationships that may indicate risks of
matenal misstatement due to fraud

+  enguiing of management and in-house fegal counsel concerning actual and potential litigation and claims, and
instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations; and

« reading minutes of meetings of those charged with governance

Report on other lagal and regulatery requirements

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

in our opinion. based an the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

e the information given In the strategic report and the directars’ report for the financiat year for which the financial
statements are prepared is cansistent with the financial statements, and

+ the strategic report and the directors' report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

In the ight of the knowledge and understanding of the group and of the parent company and their environment obtained
in the course cf the audit, we have not Identified any material misstatements in the strategic report or the directors’ report.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report in respect of the following matters if, in our opinion

« adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or retums adequate for our audit have
not been received from branches not visited by us: or

= the parent company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns: or

» certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made, or

« we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit

We have nothing to report in respect of these matters.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the company's members, as a bedy in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’'s members those
matters we are required to state to them in an auditor s repart and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted
by law we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the company and the company’s members as a
body. for aur audit wark, for this report. or for the opinions we have formed

—

Andrew Hornby (Semor statutory auditar)
For and on behalf of Qeloitte LLP
Statutory Auditor

Reading UK

14 January 2022
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Cellnex UK Limited

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive income
for the year ended 31 December 2020

31 Dec 2020 31 Dec 2019

Note £'000 £'000
Revenye 5 118.519 13.867
Cost of sales (6.455) (222
GROSS PROFIT 112,084 13,645
Statf Costs 6 (6.961) {1.362)
Depreciation and amortizaton (90.533) (8.234)
Other operating expenses 7 - (47331‘_) - (ET@ -
Total operating expenses (140.805) 115,352)
OPERATING (LOSS) PROFIT (28,741) (1,707}
Finance costs and income B _ (w0808 820
(LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAX _ . _ie9.5a8) 2627
Tax Q (3.124) 6583
(LOSSYPROFIT AND TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE e
(EXPENSE)AINCOME FOR THE YEAR (52,672} {1.944)

CONTINUING QPERATIONS

The financial statements of comprehensive Incame developed refers to the following penods:
e 2020 inciuding the Cellnex UK penmeter for the whale year and & months {July-December) of the On Tower UK
pernmeter
¢ 2019 Including the Cellnex UK perimeter for the whole year

Furher comments on the Statement of Comprehenswve Income line items are presented in the notes to the financial
statements
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Cellnex UK Limited

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
for the year ended 31 December 2020

Note 31Dec 2020 31 Dec 3019
- £ 000 E'000
Non-current assets
Goodwill 10 550,665
Intangible assets 11 1.882.285 114279
Property, plant and equipment 12 584,608 18,220
Trade and other receivables 13 2181 -
Nefrrred tax ascots 14 48,747 46
3.069.576 132 545
Current assets
Trade and oiher receivables 13 141 633 40,958
Cash and cash equivalents 387 784
142.020 41742
Total assets 3211596 174,287
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 15 (128.258) (3.267)
Lease liabilities 19 (26.816) (443)
Loans and credit facitites 18 (2.648) (2.130)
Contract liabilities 17 {43.680) (227)
Provisions 16 (1.574) {68}
(202.577) (6,135}
Net current assets {50,957) 35,607
Non-current liabilities
Detorred tax liabilities 14 (344 049
Lease hablities 19 (84 539) (1.430)
Loans and credit facilities 13 (776 .656) -
Cantract haoilives 17 (57,982) (3.843)
Prowisions 16 (199,798) -
(1.453 023) {5.083)
Total liabilities {1,666,000) {11,219)
Net assets T 71,545,506 163,068
Equity
Share capital 20 - -
Share premium account 21 1.558.200 123,000
Retained Earnings ) (12,604) ‘_40‘068
Total sharasholders ‘funds 1,545,596 163,068

The notes on pages 20 ta 49 form an integral part of the financial statements. Registered number. 05153745

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 13 January 2022 and were signed on its behalf by

4

David William Crawford
Director
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Celinex UK Limited

Consolidated Statement of Cash Fiow
for the year ended 31 December 2020

Profit for the year before tax
Adjustments for:
Inferest and other income
Interest and other expenses
Depreciation of property. plant and egupment
Deprecratian of nght-of-use assels
Amortisation of intangibla assets
Increase/{decrease) in provisions
Operating cash flows befare movements in working capnal
Decrease/fincrease} in trade and other recevables
increase/(decrease) i trade and other payables
Increase/{decrease) mn contract habiitres
Cash generated by operations
Income taxes paidireceivad
Cperating cash flows related to taxes

Net cash from operating activities

Invasting activities
Interes? receved
Propeny Plant & Equipment
Right of use assets
intangible assets
Business Combination
Net cash |used in)/ffrom investing activities

Financing activities

__ {1.887.675)

31 Dec 2620 31 Duc 2019

£000 £'000

{49,548) {2,627}

(268) {12

21.076 932

13,133 735

20765 237

56.635 7,261

3,554 68
714898 5222

{69.434) {30.247)

81,703 669

(31.602) 1,248

__ 119.534) “{28330)
{3.124) (392)

(3 1244 (382)

_ 42,689 {22,127)
139

{1.158) {1.965)

(18) (101.836)

_ (1988.851) (103,663

Interest paid {9.645)
Transactions related to loans and borrowings (9.608) )
Repayments of Ipans and borrowings - i
Praceeds from Ioans and borrowings 785 000 2130
Repayments of lease liabilihes (255,182} (387}
Proceeds on 1ssue of shares 1.435.200 123.000
Net cash {used in)from financing activities B 1,945.765 124,743
Net increase/(decrease} In cash and cash equivalents I -1 B 4(1‘04_7)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 754 1831
Ettect of foreign exchange rate changes °
387 784

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year
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Cellnex UK Limited

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

for the year ecnded 31 December 2020

Share capital

Retained

Share premium . Tatal
eamings

- £'000 £'000 £'000 £000

At 31 December 2018 B B - 42012 42,012
issue of shares 123.00¢ 123.000
Loss for the financial year - (1,944} {1 944)
At 31 December 2019 - 123,000 40,068 163,068
Issue of ehares 1,435 200 - 1,435 200
Loss far the financial year - - (32.672) (52672}
At 31 December 2020 ) - 1558200 (12,604) 1,545,596

On 7th July 2020, the Company completed a Share Capital increase of 1 £1 share for £1,200,000.000 to complete the

acquisition of a competing company in the telecoms industry resulting in £1,199,686,999 share premium

On 16th December 2020, the Company compieted another Share Capital increase of T £1 share for £235, 200,000 resutting

in share premiurm of £234,199 999
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Cellnex UK Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2020

1 GENERAL INFORMATION

Cellnex UK Limited {the Company) '$ a pubhic company hmited by shares incorporated in the United Kingdom under the
Companies Act and 1s registered in Londen. United Kingdom. The address of the Company’s registered office is shown an
page 1

The prncipal activities of the Company and 1s subsidianes (the Group) and the nature of the Group's operatans are set
out 10 the strategic report on pages 210 5

These financial statements are presented m pounds (£) which is the currency of the pnimary economic envirohment in
which the Group oparates and are rounded 1o the nearest £'000. Foreign operahons are included i accordance with the
palicies set out In note 3. As explained. the acquisttion of the On Tower UK companies was corpleted during 2020 and
the financial statements of these companies are integrated in these financal statements from 1st July onwards.

The following dormant subsidianes of the Campany have taken advantage of the s3S4A of the Compames Act 2006
exemption fram prepanng indwidual accounts These subsidiaries are exempt from the requirement to prepare individual
accounts by virtue of this section

Subsidiary Name Companies House Registration Number
Landon Connectivity Partners 12475543
Q%4 Holding 04127035
On Tower Uk 3 Ltg 02903056
On Tower Uk 5 Ltd 03956595

For the year ending 31 December 2020 the following subsidiaries of the Company were entitled to exermption from audit
under s479A of the Companies Act 2006 reiating ta subsidiary companies

Subsidiary Name Accounts Period Registration Number
Celinex UK Ld 01/01/2020 ~ 31/12/2020 5153745
Celinex UK Midca (td 01/01/2020 - 31/12/2020 6548629
Watersite Lid 01/01/2020 - 31/12/2020 8529753
Radiosite Ltd 01/01/2020 - 31122020 5232914
Celinex Canneclivity Sclutions 01/01/2020 - 31/42/2020 4134381
Celinex UK Censutting Lid 01/01/2020 - 3112/2020 5153762
On Tower UK Ltd G1/07/2020 - 31/12/2020 3196207
On Tower UK 1 Lig 01/07/2020 - 31/12/2020 3922958
On Tower UK 2 Ltd 010742020 - 31/12/2020 2973983
On Tower UK 4 Ltd 01D7/2020 - 31/12/2020 1460772

2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS

New and amended IFRS Standards that are effective for the current year. Impact of the initial application of [nterest
Rate Benchmark Reform amendments to IFRS ¢ and IFRS 7.

In September 2019, the |ASB issued interest Rate Benchmark Reform (Amendments 1o IFRS 9. IAS 39 and IFRS 7)
These amendments madify speaific hedge accounting requirements to aliow hedge accounting 1o continue for affected
hedges dunng the perod of uncertainty before the hedged wems or hedging instruments affected by the current interest
rate benchmarks are amended because of the on-gowng interest rate benchmark reforms It does not have animpact in the
financial staterments and forecasts of the Group.

Impact of the initial application of other new and amended {FRS Standards that are effective for the current year
in the current year the Group has appied the below amendments 1o IFRS Standards and Interpretations 1ssued by the

Board that are effectve for an annual period that bagins on or after 1 January 2020 Therr adoption has not had any matenal
impact on the disclosures or on the amounts reported in these financial statements
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Cellnex UK Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements - continued
for the year ended 31 December 2020

Amendments to
References to the
Conceptual Framework
in IFRS Standards

Amendments to IFRS 3
Definition of a business

Amendments to IAS 1
and IAS 8 Definition of
material

The Group has adopted the amendments included in Amendments to References to the
Conceptual Framewaork in IFRS Standards for the first time in the current year The amendments
include consequential amendments to affected Standards sc that they refer to the new
Framework Not all amendments. however, update those pronouncements with regard ta
references to and quotes from the Framework so that they refer to the revised Conceptual
Framewark. Some pronouncements are only updated te indicate which version of the Framework
they are referencing to (the IASC Framework adopted by the IASB in 2001, the IASB Framework
of 2010, or the new revised Framework of 2018} or to indicate that definitions in the Standard
have not been updated with the new defintions developed in the revised Conceptual Framework.

The Standard which are amended are IFRS 2, IFRS 3. IFRS 6, IFRS 14 1AS 1, |AS 8, |AS 34,
IAS 37. |1AS 38. IFRIC 12, IFRIC 19, IFRIC 20, IFRIC 22, and SiC-32.

The Group has adopted the amendments to IFRS 3 for the first time in the current year. The
amendments clarify that while businesses usually have outpuls, outputs are not required for an
integrated set of activities and assets to qualify as a business To be considered a business an
acquired set of actwiies and assets must include, at a minimum, an input and a substantive
process that together significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs.

The amendments remove the assessment of whether market participants are capable of
replacing any missing fnputs or processes and continuing ta produce outputs The amendments
also introduce additional guidance that helps to deterrine whether a substantive process has
been acquired.

The amendments introduce an optional concentration test that permits a simplified assessment
of whether an acquired set of activites and assets is nol a business. Under the optional
concentration test, the acquired set of activities and assets is not a business f substantially all
of the fair value of the gross assets acquired 1s concentrated in a single identifiable asset or
group of similar assets.

The amendments are applied prospectively to all business combinations and asset acquisitions
for which the acquisition date is on or after 1 January 2020

The Group has adopted the amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8 for the first time in the current year.
The amendments make the definition of matenal in IAS 1 easier to understand and are not
intended to alter the underlying concept of materiality in IFRS Standards The concept of
'obscuring' material information with immaterial information has been included as part of the new
definition

The threshaold for materiality influencing users has been changed from 'could influence’ to ‘could
reasonably be expected to influence’.

The definition of matenat in 1AS 8 has been replaced Dy a reference to the definition of material
in IAS 1 In addition the IASB amended other Standards and the Conceptual Framewocrk that
contain a definition of ‘material’ or refer to the term ‘material’ to ensure consistency.

New and revised IFRS Standards in issue but not yet effective

At the date of authorization of these financial statements, the Group has not appled the following new and rewised IFRS
Standards that have been issued but are not yet effective.

Standard Explanation Application Date
IFRS 17 insurance Contracts 1 January 2023
IFRS 10 and IAS 28 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or 14 2023
{amendments) Joinl Venture anuary
Amendments to IAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Curremt or Non-current 1 January 2023
Amendrnents to IFRS 3 Reference 1o the Conceptual Framework 1 January 2022

Amendments o IAS 18
Amendments to IAS 37
Annual Improvements (o
IFRS Standards 2018-
2020 Cycle

1 January 2022
1 January 2022

Property. Plant and Equipment—Proceeds before intended Use

Onerous Contracts — Cast of Fulfilling a Contract

Amendments 1o IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of International Financiat
Reporling Standards. IFRS 9 Financial Instruments, IFRS 16 | eases, and
IAS 41 Agriculture

1 January 2022
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements - continued
for the year ended 31 December 2020

The directors do not expect that the adoption of the Standards listed above will have a material impact on the financial
staternents of the Group in future penods.

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOQUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below These policies
have been consistently applied to all the years presented. uniess otherwise stated Celinex UK Limited is a private
Company limited by shares

Basis of preparation

The financial statemenis have been prepared in accordance with interhatonal Financiai Reporting Standards (IFRS
Standards} on & going concern basis

The financial statements have been prepared on the histoncal cost basis. except for the revaluation of certain properties
and financial instruments that are measured at revalyed amounts or fair values at the end of each reparting penod, as
explained n the accounting policies below Histoncal cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in
exchange for goods and services

Fair value is the pnee that would be recewed to sell an asset or paid to transfer a bability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price 1s directly observable or estmated using
another valuation technigue In estimating the far value of an asset or a hability, the Group lakes into account the
charactenstics of the asset or habikty if market participants would take these charactenstics into accourt when pricing the
asset or lability at the measurement date

Going concern

The Company adopts the Going Concern basis in preparing 1ts financial statements, based on the letter of finanaial support
covenng twelve months from the signing of the Annual Report from its uitimate parent undertaking, Celinex Telecom (as
at the date of signing)

The loss and total camprehensive income for the financial year was £52 672k in caontrast te 2019 which was a loss for the
year of £1,844k. The Cempany has total agsets of £3.211,596k while in 2019 had £174 287k, and net current habilities of
£60 957k against net current assets of £35 606k in 2019 The significant changes in the numbers of the company are due
acquistion of On Tawer, as noted n the principal activities section in the Dwectors’ Report. Dunng the year ended
31/12/2020 the Company has generated revenue of £118.519k compared to £13.867k in 2019

It leads the Director of the Group and Company to be confident that they wili have adequate resources 1o continue In
operational existence for the foreseeable future As part of this assessment we have considered the impact of COVID- 19,
and, based on the nature of the business. we do not beleve t will nave an overall materal adverse effect on our financial
position or cash flows

Basis of consolidation

The consoldated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Company and entities contralled by the
Company (its subsidianes) made up to 31 December each year Contralis achueved when the Company
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements - continued
for the ycar ended 31 December 2020

« has the power over the investee;
+ isexposed, or has nghts. to variable returns from its involvement with the investee, and
s has the ability to use its power to affects its returns.

Consoidation of 2 subsidiary begins when the Company obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Company
loses control of the subsidiary Specifically, the results of subsidianies acquired or dispesed of dunng the year are included
in profit ar loss from the date the Company gains cantrol until the date when the Company ceases to control the subsidiary

Whers necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring the accounting palicies used
into line with the Group's accounting policies,

All iIntragroup assets and abilities, equity, income, expenses. and cash flows relating to transactions between the members
of the Group are eliminated on consoiidanon. Non-controling interests in subsidiaries are identfied separately from the
Group's equity therein. Those (nterests of non-contralling shareholders that are present ownership interests entitting ther
helders to a proportionate share of net assets upon hquidation may initially be measured at fair value or at the non-
controling iterests' propartionate share of the fair value of the acguiree’s identifiable net assets. The chaice aof
measurement 18 made on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis Other ngn-controlling nterests are sitially measured at fair
value Afer acquisition, the carrying amount of non-controlling interests is the amount of those interests at initial recognition
plus the non-controlling interests’ share of subsequent changes in equity.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of the subsidiaries is attnbuted to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even If this results in the non-controlling interests having a defict balance.

Changes in the Group's interests in subsidiaries that do not result in a loss of cantrol are accounted for as equity
transactions. The carrying amount of the Group's interests and the non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the
changes in their refative interests in the subsidiaries Any difference between the amount by which the non-controlling
interests are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or received Is recognised directly in equity and atiributed
to the owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the gain or loss on dispesal recognised in profit or loss is calculated as the
difference between (1) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and the fair value of any retained interest
and {ii) the previous carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), less liabies of the subsidiary and any non-
contreliing interests All amounts previcusly recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to that subsidiary are
accounted for as if the Group had direclly disposed of the related assets or liabilities of the subsidiary (L.e reclassified 1o
profit or loss or transferred to another categary of equity as required/permitted by applicable IFRS Standards). The fair
value of any investment retained in the former subsidiary at the date when control is lost 1s regarded as the far value on
nitial recognition for subsequent accounting under IFRS 9 when applicable, or the cost on initial recognition of an
investment i an associate or a jomnt venture.

Business Combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquistion method. The consideration transferred In a business
combination 15 measured at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of assels
transferred by the Group, labilities incurred by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interest
issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree Acquistion-related costs are recognised in profit or loss as
ingurred

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired, and the habilities assumed are recognised al their fair value at the
acquisition date, except that:

« deferred tax assets or liabilities and assets or habilties related ta employee benefit arrangements are recogrised and
measured in accordance with IAS 12 and IAS 19 respectively;

» liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based payment arrangements of the acquiree, or share-dbased payment
arrangements of the Group entered inte te replace share-based payment arrangements of the acquiree are measured
in accordance with IFRS 2 at the acquisition date (see below); and

« assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale in accordance with IFRS 5 are measured in accordance
with that Standard.

Goodwill s measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests

in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer's previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the net of

the acquisition-date amounts of the identifianle assets acquired and the liabilities assumed. If, after reassessment, the net

of the acquisttion-date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the
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consideration transferred. the amaunt of any non-controlling interests in the acgquiree and the far value of the acquirer's
previously held interest in the acquiree {if any). the excess s recognised immediately in profit or loss as & bargain purchase
gain

When the consideration transferred by the Group n a business combinafion includes a contingent cansideration
arrangement, the contingent consideration s measured at ts acquisiton-date farr valug and inciuded as part of the
consideration transterred in a business combination Changes in fair vaiue of the contingent consideration that qualify as
measurement penod adjustments are adjusted retrospectvely. with corresponding adjustments agamst goodwill
Measurement period adjustments are adjustments that anse from additional informatan obtained dunng the measuremant
perod’ {which canret exceed cne year from the acquisition date) about facts and crcumstances that existed at the
acguisttion date

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value of the contingent consideration that do not qualfy as measurement
period adjustments depends on how the contingent consideralion 15 classified Contingert consideration that is classified
as equity 1§ not remeasured at subseguent reporiing dates and s subsequernt settlement is accounted for within equity
Other contingent consideration is remeasured to far value at subsequent reporing dates with changes in fair value
recognised 1n profit or loss

Goodwill

Goodwill generated 1n vanous business combinations represents the excess of the acquisition cost over the far or market
value of ali the Group’s or the company's identfiable net assets acquired at the acquisiion date.

Given that goodwill 1s considered as an asset of the acquited company/group (except that generated prior to 1 January
2004}, 1n the application of the (FRS 1 they were consdered a5 assaets of the acquiree

Goodwill s not amortised but 15 reviewed for impairment annually. For the purpose of imparment testing, Goodwill is
allocated to each of the Group’'s cash-generating umis expected to henefit from the synergies of the combinatian

Cash-generating units to which gaodwill has been allocated are tested for impawment annually, or more frequently when
there is an indication that the unit may be jmpaired If the recoverable amount of the cash-genarating unit Is less than the
carrying amaunt of the unit, the impairment lass 15 aflocated first 10 reduce the carrying amount of any goodwil| allocated
to the unit and then to the other assets of the unit pro-rata on the bass of the carrying ameunt of each asset in the unit An
impaimment loss recognised for goodwill s not reversed in a subsequent perod

On disposal of a cash-generating untt. the attributable amount of gocdwll 15 included in the determination of the profit or
loss on disposal

Impairment of non-financial assets

At each reporting period date, tha Group reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangitle assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an wnpairment loss. i any such indicaton exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset 1s estimaled 10 determine the exieni of the impairment loss (if any) Where the asset does
not genarate cash flows that are independent from ather assets, the Company eslimates the recoverable amaunt of the
tash-generating uni to which the asset belongs When a reasonabie and consistent basis of attocation can be identified
corporate asseis are aiso aliocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest
group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified

An intangible asset with an wndefinite useful life 1s tested for impairment at least annually and whenever there is an indication
that the asset may be vmpaired

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use 10 assessing value in use. the estimated
future cash flowe are discounted to their present vakie using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the tme value of money and the risks specific 1o the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows
have not been adyusted

If the recaverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) 15 estimated {o be less than its carrying amount the carrying
amaount of the asset (ar cash-generaung unn) is reduced to 1ts recoverable amount An wmpaimment loss 18 recognised
immechately in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carned at a revalued amount, in which case the )/mpairment loss
is treated as a revaluation decrease

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses. the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) 1s increased
to the revised esumate of its recoverable amaunt. but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or cash-generating unit)
W priorF years A revarsal of an impairment |0ss 1s recognised immediately in profit or loss, uniess the impairment relates 1o
geodwill in which case it cannot be reversed
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intangible assets

The intangible assets indicated below are recognised at acquisition cost less accumulated amortization and any loss due
to impairment, with their useful life being evaluated on the basis of prudent estimates. Amontisation s charged fo the
Income Statement on a straight-ine basis cver the estimated useful life of the asset. on the following bases.

Anintangible asset is derecognised on digposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected or in case of disposal.
Gains or losses ansing fram de-recognition of an intangible asset. measured as the difference batween the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amcunt of the asset. are recogmised (1 profit or loss when the asset s derecognsed.

Asset Description Estimated Useful Life

Customer Relationstups Main Customers 20 years )

Customer Relationships Airwave 20 years

Network Location 20 years

TSA & PMA Contracts 2Q years

Income rights 20 - 80 years

Other Intangible Assets (Software & Licenses) Length of lease (typically between 3-20 years)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equiprment is stated at acquisition or production cost less accumulated depreciation and any loss due
to impairment General and specific barrowing costs as staff costs directly attributable to the acquisition of construction of
qualifying assets are capitalized where assets take a significant perod of time to become ready for use

Costs incurred to renovate. enlarge, or improve items of property, plant and equipment which increase the capacty or
praductivity or extend the useful life of the asset are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset, provided that the carrying
amount of the assets replaced and derecogrised from inventories is known or can be estimated

The costs of major overhauls are capitalised and depreciated over their estimated useful lives, while recurring upkeep and
maintenance costs are charged to the income statement in the year in which they are incurred The depreciation of property,
plant and equipment, except for land, which is not depreciated, is calculated systematically on a straight-line basis, using
the estimated useful life of the assets, based on the actual decline in value caused by their use and by wear and tear

Grants related to assets received reduce the cost of acquisition of property. plant and equipment, and are recogmised when
the entity complies with conditions attaching to collection. These grants are laken to profit or loss on a straight-line basis
over the useful life of the asset financed, with a reduction in the depreciation charge for the year.

Staff costs and other expenses, as well as net borrowing costs directly related to property. plant and equipment, are
capitalised as part of the investment until the assets are put to use.

Asset Description Estimated Useful Life -
Freehold land and buidings 20 - 80 years

Shert leasehold land and buildings Length of lease (typically between 20-80 years)

Plant and equipment 3-100 years

When an asset's carrying amount exceeds its estimated recoverable amount. the carrying amount 1s immediately reduced
to its recoverable amount, and the effect is taken to the consohdated income statement for the year, and the related
provision is recognised.

The Group therefore periodically determines whether there is any indication of impairment Gains or losses ansing from

the sale or disposal of an asset in this item are determined as the difference between carrying amount and sale price and
are recognised in the accompanying consolidated income statement under "Losses on fixed assets’
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Prowisiarn for Asset Remaval Chiigation

This relates to the Group s best estimate of the tegal obligation in relation to the retirement of tangible assets with long
useful lives, such as for example, infrasiructures for mebie telecommunications operators It is calculated using estimates
of the present value of the cash paymants required to dismantie the assets, {aking into considecation ail the information
avaidable at the balance sheet date

Right of use assels

Right-of-use assets are depreciated over the shorter pericd of the lease term and the useful life of the underlying asset If
a lease transfers gwnership of the underlying asset or the cost of the nght-of-use asset reflecls that the Group expects to
exercise a purchase option, the related right-of-use asset I1s deprecated over the useful ife of the underlying asset

Financial assets and liabilities

Financial Assets

Allocation
The Company's financial assets are classified as

a) Leans and receivables. loans and receivables are financial assets orginating from the rendering of services In the initial
course of the Company s business, or those that are not of commercial ongin, are not equity instruments or denivative,
have fixed or determinable payments and are not traded on an active market

b} Equity mvestments In Group companies and assocsiales group companes are deemed to be those related to the
Company as a result of control relationship and associates are companies over which the Company exercises significant
influence

Inibial recognition

Financial assets are inmally recognised at the fawr value of the consideration given pius directly attributable transaction
costs

Fees paid to tax adwisors or other professiohals n relation to the acquistion of investments in Group companies which
exercise control over the subsidiary are recognised directly in the income statement

Subsequent valuation

Loans and recewables are valued at therr amortized cost The effective interest rate 15 the rate of update that exactly
matches the value of a financial instrument to all of 1s cash laws estimated by all concepts throughout its remaining Iife
For fixed-rate financial instruments, the effective interast rate conodes with the contraciual interest rate established at the
time of purchase plus, where appropnate, commissions which by their nature, are simifar 0 an interest rate In vanable
interest rate financial instruments, the effective mierest rate comncides with the current rate of retumn for all concepts untl!
the first revision of the benchmark interest rate to take place

Investments in Group. associated and mu'h-group companies are vaued at cost reduced. when appropnate, by the
accumutated amount of impairment corrections These corrections are calculated as the difference between ther book
value and the recoverable amaunt, understood as the highest amount batween their fair value less selt costs and the
current vaiue of future cash flows denved from the investment Except for better evidence of the recoverabie amaunt. the
equity of the investee is taken into account, corrected for the taci capital gans existing on the valuation date (including
goodwill If any)

At least at year-end, the Company perorms an impairment test for financial assets that are not recorded at fair value I is
considered that there is objective evidence of impairment If the recoverable value of the financial asset 1s lower than its
took value When it occurs, the recording of this impaimment is recorded in the profit and loss account

In particular, and with respect to the valuation adjustments relating to commercizal debtors and other accounts recevable,
the criteria used by the Company to calculate the carresponding value adjustments, if any s to estimale the far value of
saud balances based on the collections estmalted futures

A provision made for imparment of trade recervables 1s estabhished when there is objective evidence (e g when amounts
are overdue far a significant period of tme). that the Group will not be able to collect all amounts due according 10 the
original terms of the receivables The amount of the provision 1$ the dilference between the asset s carrying amount and

Page 2§




Cellnex UK Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements - continued
for the year ended 31 December 2020

the recoverable amount, being the present value of expected cash fiows, discounted at the originai effective interest rates.
The carrying amount of the asset 1s reduced through the use of an allowance account, and the amount of the loss is
recognised in the statement of comprehensive income as an expanse

Accordingly. for the purpose of impairment assessment for these financial assets, the loss allowance 1s measured at an
amount equal to 12-month ECL As for the Ioans to related and other parties lifetime ECL was provided for them upon
inttial application of IFRS 9 until these financial assets are derecognised as it was determmed on initial application of IFRS
9 that it would require undue cost and effort lo determine whether their credit risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition o the date of initial application of IFRS 9. For any new loans to related or third parties, which are not purchased
of originated credit-mpaired financial assets, the impairment loss 1s recaognised as 12-month ECL on initial recognition of
such instruments and subsequently the Group assesses whether there was a significant increase in credit risk.

in determining the expccted credit Josses Jur lhese assets, the directors of the Company have taken into account the
historical default expertence the financial position of the counterparties, as well as the future prospects of the industries in
which the issuers of the redeemable notes, bills of exchange and debentures operate obtained fram economic expert
reports, financial analyst reports and considering vanous external sources of actual and forecast economic information. as
appropnate. in estimating the probabitity of default of each of these financial assets occurnng within their respective loss
assessment time horizon, as well as the loss upon default in each case

There has been na change in the estimation techaiques or significant assumptions made during the current reparting period
in assessing the loss allowance for these financial assets

Trade and other receivables
Trade and other receivables item mainly corresponds to

« Loans granted to associates, mult-group or related parties, which are measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method This value is reduced by the corresponding valuation adjustment for the impairment of the asset, as
applicable

+ Deposits and guarantees recognised at therr nominal value, which does not differ significantly from their fair value.

« Trade accounts recewable, which are measured at their nominal amount, which is similar to fair value at initial
recagnition. This value 1s reduced, if necessary, by the corresponding provision for bad debts {impairment l0ss)
whenever there 1s objective evidence that the amount owed will not be partially or fully collected This amount s
charged against the consclidated income statement for the year.

Cellnex UK Group derecognises financial assets when they expire or the rights over the cash flows of the corresponding
financial asset have been assigned and the risks and benefits inherent fo their ownership have been substantally
transferred, such as in the case of firm asset sales. nan-recourse factoring of trade receivables in which the Group does
not retain any credit or interest rate risk. sales of financial assets under an agreement to repurchase them at fair value and
the securitisation of financial assets in which the transferor does ngt retain any subordinated debt, provide any kind of
guarantee or agsume any other kind of risk

However, the Company does nat derecognise financial assets. and it recognises a financial hability for an amount equai to
the consideration received in transfers of financial assets 1n which substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are
retained. such as in the case of nate and bill discounting. with-recourse factoring. sales of financial assets subject to an
agreement to buy them back at a fixed price or at the selling price plus a lender’s return and the securitisation of financial
assets in which the transferring group retains a suborcinated interest or any other kind of guarantee that absorbs
substantially all the expected losses

The Group applies IFRS 9 for all the financial assets (current and nan-current) recogrused on these financial statements.

Financial liabilities

This category includes trade and non-trade payables, loans and borrowings. These barrowings are classified as current
labilities unless the Campany has an unconditional rght to defer the settlement for at least twelve months after the balance
sheet date

Trade payables falling due within one year and which do not have a contraclual interest rate are stated, both inttially and
afterwards, at nominal value when the effect of not discounting the cash flows is not material. Oebits and payables are
initally valued at the fair value of the consideration received, adjusted for transaction costs dwectly atiributable
Subsequently, these labilites are valued accerding to their amortized cost.

The Company derecognises financial liabitities when the obligations that have generated them are extinguished
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Borrowings arg iInlally recogmised at fair value, including the costs incurred in raising the debl In subsequent periods. the
difference petween the funds obtained (net of the costs required to cbitain them) and the repayment value If any and if it
is significant. s recognised on the income statement aver the tem of the cebt at the effective interest rate

{f existing debts are renagotiated, it s considered that there are no substantial medifications to the financial fiabilites when
the lender for the new loan 15 the same party that extended the imitial loan and the present value of the cash flows, including
net commissions does not differ by more than 10% from the present value of the cash flows payable from the onginal
lability calculated using the same method

Current {iIncome tax) and Deferred tax

Current Income 1ax expense 15 the amaunt the Company pays as @ result of income tax settlements far a given year Tax
crechls angd other tax benefits applied to taxable prafit exciuding tax withholdings, prepayments and tax loss carry forwaras
from previous years, reduce current income tax expense

Deferred tax 1s the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabiimies in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit and s
aceounted for using the hability method.

Deferred tax liabilives are generally recogmsed for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recogmsed
to the extent that # s probable that laxable prafits will e available against which deductible tempaorary differences can be
utthsed Such assets and llabitibies are not recogmsed If the temparary difference anses from the nitial recogndion (other
than in a business combination) of ather assets and liabnities In a transacuan that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
acceunting profit  n addition, a deferred tax liabahty 15 not recogrised If the temporary difference anses from the imitat
recognition of goodw:)).

Deferred tax liabiities are recognised 1n respect of all taxable tempcerary differences. with the exception of those arising
from initial recognition of geodwill or other assets and habilihes in an operaton that does not affect either taxable profit or
accounting profit and 13 not a business combination The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each
reporting date and reduced o the extent that 1t s no longer prabable that sufficient taxable profiis will be available 1o allow
all or part of the asset to be recovered

Deterred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the penod when the Lability 1s sattled. or the asset
is reaiised based on tax [aws and rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date

The measurement of deferrad tax habilities and assets reflects the tax corsequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting penod, to recover or settle the carrnying amount of 15 assets and
fiabilites

Inventories

inventories comprnise mainly technical equipment which. after installation, wil be scld Inventories are measured at
acauisition prce fess any necessary valuaton adjustments and the corresponding impairment

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents Incluge cash in hand. bank balances and deposits held at cali with maturites of (ess than 12
manths Cash ang cash equivalents are stated at face value.

Net Equity

The share capital 1s represented by ordinary shares The costs of issuwirg new shares or options net of 1ax. are recognised
directly against equity as a reduction to reserves Dividends on ordinary shares are recognised as a reduction to equity
when apgroved

Acquisitions of treasury shares are recognised at their acquisition cost and are deducted from equily unti cisposal.

The gains and losses obtained on the disposal of treasury shares are recagmised under "Reserves’ in the consokdated
balance sheet
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Employee benefits

Under the respective collective bargaining agreements, different Group companies have the following obligations with their
employees:

1) Post-employment obligations:

Defined gcantribution obligations

In relation to defined contribution employee welfare nstruments (which basically include employee pension plans and
group insurance policies), the Group makes hxed contributions to a separate entity and has no legal or constructive
obligation to pay further contributions If the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employee benefits Consenuently,
the abligations under this type of plan a1« linited to the payment of contnbutions, the annual expense of which 1s recogrised
in the consclhdated income statement for the year as the obligations arise

1) Other long-term benefits

Regarding other long-term employee benefits, relating mainly to length of service at the company, the liability recognised
on the balance sheet coincides with the present value of the obligations at the reparting date as they do not inciude any
plan assets

The profected unit credit method is used ta determine both the current value of the labilites at the bralance sheet date and
the cost of the services prowded in the current and prior years. The actuarial gains and losses that arise from changes in
the actuarial assumptions are recogrised. unlike the post-employment habiities in the year in which they ocour on the
consolidated incarne statement for the year

i} Severance pay

Severance pay is given to employees as a result of the decision to terminate thewr work contract befare the normal
retirement age or when the employee voluntarily accepts to resign in exchange for such compensatlions The Group
recognises these benefits when it is demonstrably committed to tenminate the employment of the empioyees n accordance
with a formal detailed plan without the possibility of withdrawal cr to provide severance pay If a mulual agreement 1s
reguired, a provision is only recorded in situations in which the Group has decided to give its consent to the resignation of
the employees when this has been requested by them

V) Obfigations arising trom plans for termination of empioyment

Prowisions for obligations relating to plans for termination of employment of certain employees (such as earty retirement or
other forms of employment termination} are calcutated individually based on the terms agreed with the employees In some
cases, this may require actuarial valuations based on both demographic and financial assumpticns.

V} Long Term Incentive Plan

The amounts considerad by the Group in relahon to the Long-term Incentive Plans {"LTIP") which were formalised in 2017,
2018, 201¢ and 2020 with the objective to retain key personnel and incentivise the sustainable creation of value for the
company

The Long Term Incentive Plan of the Company are consistent with thase of the Group and are set out in full in Cellnex
Telecom S A" annual report, a copy of which s available in the Group’s website at www cel.nextelecom.com

Leases

For most cantracts there (s limited judgement in determining whether an agreement contains a lease, however, the change
in definition of a lease mainly relates to the concept of contral IFRS 186 distinguishes between leases and service contracts
on the basis of whether the use of an identified asset |s controlled by the lessee. Control Is considerad to exist If the

customer has

= The right to obtain substantially all of the ecenomic benefits from the use of an identified asset, and
» The right to direct the use of that asset.

Judgement is sometimes required to determine whether the Company controls the asset and has a lease under {FRS 16,
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Provisions

Provisions are recoghised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
it 15 probabie that the Company will be required to settle that obligation and a relrable estimate can be made af the amount
of the obligation

The amount recogrsed as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settie the present obligation at
the balance sheet date. considering the nsks and uncertainhes surrounding the obligation VWhere a provision is measured
using the cash fiows estimaled to settie the ptesent obligaticn it carrying amount 15 the present vatue of those cash flows
(when the effect of the time value of money is matenal)

When some or all of the economic benefits reguired to seftle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party
a receivable is recognised as an asset f it 1s virtually certain that reimbursement will be receved and the amount of the
recelvable can be measured reliably

Prowisions recogrised relate o the sstimated amounts required to meet probable or cenain liabilties stemrming from
ongeing lihgation, compensation or other items resuling from the Group's activity that entail future payments that have
been measured on the basis of currently available information They are recognised as soon as the fabiity or obligation
requinng compensaton or payment to a third party arises, and bearing in mind the other conditions set forth in IFRSs.

Estimates have been made in respect of the probable future obligations of the Company. These estimations are reviewed
annually to reflect current economic condions and strategic plans

Management also exercises judgement in measuring the exposures to coningent hablities through assessing the likelihaod
that a potential claim or liability wifl arise. and in quantifying the possible range of financial outcomes

Yvhen the probability that the Company will be required to settle an obligation 15 remote or a reliable estimate cannot be
made of the amount of the abligation the Company discloses & centingent hability in the notes to the finanaal statements

Prowsions for asset retirernent obligations

This relates to the Group's best estimate of the legal obligation in relation to the retirement of tangible assets with long
useful ives. such as. for exampie. infrastructures for mobile telecommunications aperators It is calculated ysing estimates
of the present value of the cash payments required o dismantle the assets, taung into consideration all the information
available at the balance sheet date

Due to the uncertaintes inherent 1o the estimations necessary for delesmmmng the amount of the provision. the actual
expensas may differ from the amounts ornigmally recognised on the basis of the estimales made

The decommissioning provisions are reviewed annually and are calculated based upon expected costs and past costs
mncurred on similar sites as determimad by site and project management, as well as assesgments made by Internal experts

Revenue

Revenue rearesents the gross inflow of economic benefit in respect of commumcation network infrastructure services and
includes the value of charges made for site rental Revenue is stated et of value added tax Revenue is measured at fair
vatue of the consigeration received or receivable

On inception of a contract, performance obligations are identified for each of the distinet services that have promised (o be
provided o the customer. The consideration specified in the contracl s allocated to each performance obhgation identified
based on therr relative standalone selling prices and s recogmsed as revenue as they are satisfied, 1n some cases, it may
be appropriate to use the contract price when this represents a bespoke prce that would be the same for a similar customer
i a similar circumstance.

Cash receved or inverces raised In advance are taken to deferred income and recognised as contract liabitias, and
subsequently recogrised as revenue when the services are provided Where consideration received in advance s
discounted reflecting a significant financing component. 1t is reflected within revenue and interest payable and similar
charges an a gross basis Revenue recogmsed in advance of cash being receved or an invoice being raised 18 recognised
as accrued income within contract assets and subsequently reclassified to recevabies once an invoice 1s raised Invoices
are ssued in (ine with contract terms

The Company does not have any matena! obligations in respect of returns refunds or warrantes.

The different business streams are defined i the Revenue note inote 5)
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Delivery of engineering projecis

Continuous technological pragress forces the Group o develop engineenng projects to adapt its sites to the equipment
that its varous operatars need to offer the best services 1o its customers The Group in collaboration with external advisors
has calculated that these works must be carried out every 7 years therefore the income related to them 1s accrued during
the aforementioned penod of time.

Expense recognition

Expenses are recognised mi Lhe consolidated income statement when there 1s a decrease in the future economic benefits
related to a decrease in an asset or an increase in a liability has arisen that can be measured reliably This means. in
effect. that recognition of expenses occurs simultanecusly with the recognition of an increase in liabilities or a decrease in
assets

The register of an expense should occur based on the actual flow of goods and services, imespective of when the
comresponding payments are made Any payment that may be made for all of a service received during a given period of
time will be considered a prepaid expense recognised on the asset side of the consolidated balance sheet under “Trade
and other recewvables’ and will be taken to the consolidated income statement when the service 1s recewved by the Group.

Expenses are recorded immediately when a payment generates no future economic benefits or when it does not comply
with the requirements to be registered as an asset

An expense is alsp recorded when a liability is recorded and no correspeonding asset is simultaneously recorded as would
be the case for liabilities for guarantees.

Financial costs and income

Financial costs and income are recognised on an accrual’s basis in the period in which If the transaction reiated occur

Dividends receivable and payable

Dividends are recognised in the period when the right ta recesve payment 15 established, and final dividends are recognised
when they have been approved by sharcholders at the Annual General Meeting

Foreign Exchange

Balances denominated in foreign curréncies are translated either at the original rate applied to the transaction where there
1S no current intention to arrange settlement or at agreed group settlement rates where transactions are to be settled in the
short term. Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are translated into pound sterling at the rates ruhing at the dates
of the transactions Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at 31 December are retransiated at
the rates ruling at that date These translation differences are included within the profit and loss account

Critical judgements in applying the Company’s accounting policies

» In the application of the Company's accounting palicies. which are described in note 3, the directors are required to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and kabilities that are not readily
apparent frorn other sources The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and
other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates

e The judgements, estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are
relevant. Actual results may differ from these judgements, estmates and assumptions.

e The judgements, estimates and underiying assumptions are reviewed on an on-going basis Revisions are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised
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Revenue recognition
in applying the revenue recognitian policy. as set out i note 3, judgements are made in respect of certain areas including.

« determination of distinct contract components and performance abligations;
+ the recognition of a significant financing compenent

The afore menhoned judgements are consistently zpplied across similar contracts

Key estimations;
tn applying the Comparmes' revenue recognition poficy as set out in note 5. estimations are made i respect of certain
areas mciuding.

« measurement of vanable consideration;

» In the apphcaton of the percentage of completion approach to long-term contractual arrangements which relies on
estimates of total expected contract revenues and costs, as well as rejiable measurement of the progress made towards
completion

Leases

For most contracts there Is imited judgement n determining whether an agreement contams a lease. however, the change
in defimtion of a lease mainly relates 1o the cancept of control IFRS 16 dishnguishes between leases and service contracts
on the basis of whether the use of an identfied asset |s cantrolled by the lessee Control Is considered to exist If the
cusiomer has

« The nght lo gbtain substannally all of the economig benefits from the use of an identfied asset. and
+ The nght o direct the use of that asset

Judgement Is sometimes required to determine whether the Company controls the asset and has a lease under (FRS 16

Critical accounting judgements.

Some lease contracts Include elements of consideration which are fixed ana variable For these contracts judgement is
required to determine to what extent any of the variable consideration Is In substance fixed consideration according to
IFRS 16 Where variable consideration 1s in substance fixed consideration it |s accounted for in the valuation of the lease
lLabilty and right-of-use asset

Lease terms under IFRS 16 may exceed the minimum lease period and (nclude optional lease perods where i s
reasonably cerfain that an extension option {or other contractual rights) will be exercised or that a térmimation option wilt
nol be exercised by the Company

Significant judgement 1s required in determiming whether optional periods should be included in the lease term taking into
account the leased asset's nature. purpose and potential for replacement and any plans that the Company has in place for
future use of the asset

Provisions and contingent liabilities

As disclosed in note 1§, the Companys provisions principally refate to obligations ansing from contractual otligations
restructunng and property remediation plans and decommissiomng obligatons

The dentficaton of such obligations n the context of dailly operations which require provisions to be made requires
jusgement Judgement (s alsc required to distinguigh hetween provisians and cantmgent nabilitres

Key estimations:
Estimates have been made tn respect of the probable future abhgations of the Company These eslimates are reviewed
annually to refiect current economic conditions and strategic plans

The decommissioning provisions are reweéwed anrually and are calculated based upon expected costs and past costs
incureed on simylar sites as determined by site and project management as well as assessments made by Internal experts

Management also exercises judgement in measuring the exposures to contingent liabxlities through assessing the hkefihood
that a potential claim or kability will arise, and 10 quantifying the possible range of financial outcomes As part of the
finalrsation of the PPA accounting (see below). the Group have recogrised provisions for potential expaosures resulting
fram the transfer of assets These amounts give nse fo significant estimation uncertainty and as a result may matenally
impact the results of the Group in future years

Page 32




Cellnex UK Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements - continued
for the year cnded 31 December 2020

PPA Accounting

The Group typically acquires telecommunications infrastructures from telecommunications carriers or other infrastructure
operators and subsequently integrates those infrastructures into its existing network. The financial results of the Group's
acquisitions have been included in the accompanying consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2020 fram the date of respective acquisition The date of acquisiion and by extension the point at which the Group begins
to recognise the resuits of an acquisition, may be dependent upon, among other things, the recept of contractual consents,
the commencement and extent of contractual arrangements, the timing of the transfer of title cr nghts to the assets as well
as the customary regulalory approvals. which may be accomplished in phases

As a resutt of the business combiinalions performed during 2020 and 2019, and following a prudent approach. the vast
majority of the difference between the book value of the assets acquired and the purchase price paid has been assigned
to assets subject to deprecation or amortization. Thus. the resuiting goodwilt corresponds in the vast majority to the net
deferred tax recognised resulting from the higher fair value attributed to the net assets acquired in companson with their
tax bases. Furthermaore, provision for other responsibilities captures mainly provisions for contingent liabilites made dunng
the Purchase Price Allocation process which are a result of present obligations arising from past events, where the far
value can be reliably measured.

Deferred tax

The calculation of the income tax expense requires the interpretation of tax legislaton in the jurisdictions where the Group
operates The determination of expected outcomes with regards to outstanding disputes and litigation requires significant
estimates and judgements to be made The Group assesses the recoverability of deferred tax assets based on the
estimates of future taxabie income and the abiiity to generate sufficient income during the periods in which these deferred
taxes are deductible
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4. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

In the second half of 2019, Celinex Telecom S.A_ and Celinex UK Limited entered into an agreement with Arqiva Haldings
Linited, a company within the Argiva group (the "Arqiva Group™}. for the sale and purchase of 100% of the 1ssued and
paid-up share capital of Argiva Services Limited (the “Argiva Acguisition’), @ company to which the Argiva Group has
carved-out the United Kingdom teiecoms towers business of the Arqiva Group following a reorganisation of assets
liabnfities and activities.

On 8 July 2020, the Group compieted the Argiva Acquisibon, after all the conditions precedent were satisfied. and acguired
full ownership of the share capital of Argiva Services Limited. which 18 the owner of approximately 7,400 held sites and the
rights o market approximately 800 sites ocated in United Kingdom

The total consideration in relation to this acquisition has amounted to approximately GBP 2 billien,
The breakdown of the net assets acquired, and goodwill generated by the Argwa Acquisition, at the completion date, 1s as
faliows-

31 Dec 2020
—— — — __f£o00
Purchase Price 1.987 675
Net Assets Acquired 124 631;_
Customer Network Services Contracts o 1‘265‘59_1-7
Netwark Locatian 537.800
Other intangibie assets from the PPA (TSA & PMA contracts) 19.200
Contingent Liabilities {177.720)
Deferred tax on Intangible Assets {352 B59}
Step ups/downs Fixed assets 34560
Step ups/downs Right of Lise Assets 115 188}
Blep ups/downs L ease liabihies 15,168
Asset Removal Obligations Provigion (14 190)
Far value allocated ) ‘7 ;3—7 EE_
Total Goodwill T Tssnees

The main rate of UK corparatian tax remained at 18% during the penod

The fair value al the date of acquisition of the assets and habiities of the acquired business has been determined for the
most part, using valuation techniques The mam valuation methads used were the analysis of discounted cash fiows
generated by the dentified assets Witk regards to the Argiva AcqQusition, given the complexity of identifying the acquired
intangible assets. the Group decided to perform a purchase price allocation with the participation of an ingdependent third-
party expert.

The potental value of the sites and therr business potential for the company reflects to the characteristics and quality of
the locatons where they are based. which translates into a2 centain expectation of increasing the site occupancy ratio. This
can be attributed to certain sets of intangible assets of which each individual element 1s necessary to realize the full value
Thus the fair vafue amount of the acquired nat assets includes the valuation of the intangible assets identified that
individually meel the identfiability critena of 1AS 38 ({Intangible Assels) and congisls of "Customer Network Services
Contracts” and "Network Locaton”

The "Custamer Network Services Contracts” refates to the customer base existing at the acquisition date due 10 the
Company's infrastructure service conlracts with the anchor carner and to the future returns expected to be generated
because of the relationships with the custemers beyond the pernods covéred Dy the contracts

The 'Network Location’ represents the incremental revenues and cashflows from additional nfrastructure senvice
agreements with carners not yet present at the date of acquisition. The Network Location 1s considered an intangible asset,
valued independently from the remaining \ntangible assets, because  meets the requirement of separability. given that
the excess avalable capacity can be used to offer netwark access senvices to third partes

The goodwili manly includes the net recognition of any deferred taxes resuling from the higher fair value attnbuted to the
net assels acquired in companson with the 1ax bases
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The operating income and net loss contribution since acquisttion amounted to 115 million and 12 million (£), respectively,
corresponding to the impact of 100% of the financial results of the Argiva Acquisition in the accompanying censolidated
income statement. Otherwise, if the Argiva Acquisition, had been completed on 1 January 2020, and consequently 1t had
been fully consolidated for the year ended 31 December 2020, it would have contributed an operating income and net lass
for an amount of approximately 240 million and 14 million (£), respectively

Details of the Cellnex UK - Argiva deal

Certain Cellnex and Armiva group companies have entered inlu several agreements in the context of the Argiva Acguisition,
including:

A sale and purchase agreement. for the sale and purchase of 100% of the entire issued share capital of Arqiva
TowerCo, between Cellnex, Cellnex UK and Arqiva Holdings Limited (the "Argiva SPA™)

A master site share agreement, entered into by Argiva Limited (a company of the Argiva Group) and Argiva TowerCo,
permitting Argiva Limited rights of access to and use of the UK Tower Business sites for its broadcast and M2M
businesses and regulating the provision by Argiva TowerCao of related site services (the “Argiva MSSA')

Master site share agreements with certain third parties. pemitting such third parties rights of access to and use of
certain sites and regulating the provision by the Group and Argwa TowerCo, as applicable, of related site services (the
“Third-Party MSSAs™): and

A portfoko management agreement, entered into by Argiva Limited and Argiva TowerCo, permitting Argiva TowerCo
rights of access to and use of 1,492 sites for its custemer's equipment and services and for certain exclusive rights to
market site space to MNOs and to recewve 100% of all revenues in relation thereto (the “Argiva PMA”).

The breakdown of the net assets acquired, and goodwill generated by the Argiva Acquisition, at the completion date, is as
follows:

The fair vaiue at the date of acquisition of the assets and habiiities of the acquired business has been determined, for
the most part using valuation techniques

The main valuation rmethods used were the analysis of discounted cash flows generated by the identified assets.
based on criteria similar to those mentioned in Note 3.c With regards to the Argiva Acquisition, considering that IFRS
3 allows the reassessment of the allocation process dunng a perod of one year and given the complexity of identfying
the acquired Intangible assets, the Group decided to perform a purchase pnce allocation with the participation of an
independent therd-party expert.

The potential value of the sites is mainly due to the characteristics and quality of the physical locations, which transiates
into a certain expectation of Increasing their "customer ratio”. This can be attributed to certain sets of Intangible assets.
of which each individual element is necassary to realise the full value Thus, the fair value amount of the acquired net
assets includes the valuation of the intangible assets dentified that individually meet the dentifiability critena of IAS
38 {Intangible Assets) and consists of "Customer Network Services Contracts” and "Network Location” as defined in
Note 3 b) i) and also that provisions related with certain risks of the transaction and the acquired business that meet
the recognition critena according to IFRS3

The goodwill mainly includes the net recognition of any deferred taxes resulting from the higher fair value attributed to
the net assets acquired in comparison with the tax bases.

Page 35



Cellnex UK Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements - continued

for the year ended 31 December 2020

The assets and liabillves arising from the prowisional purchase pnce allocation are s follows
Value acquired (Thousands of €) -
- T T T T T T T T T T T Fairvalue  Carrying Value  Revaluation
Eu;om; Rc;\ticnships.fMaFCu;;:meﬂ;ﬁ_ - —_71.256‘591 - 1.265.591
Customer Relahonships Arwave 11,700 11,700
Network | ocalion 526.100 526.100
TSA & PMA Contracts 19,200 19.200
Property Plant & Equipment 185.027 160 4567 34,560
Right of Use IFRS 16 261,759 276 927 (15 168)
Trade and ather recervables 33822 33.422 -
Cash at bark 102 102
AROD Provision b T £18.561) {4.371) {14.190)
Deferred Revenue LT {76.055) {76.055) -
IFRS 16 Liability {195.778) {210.945) 15.167
Trade Creditors {25.851) {25,850
Deterred Revenue ST (53.528) (53 528) -
Current hiabimies (17 438) (17 438) -
Qther non-current provisions {177.720) (177.720)
Cther current prowisions {1.570) ¢1 570)
Net deferred {ax assets Kiabilites) . {299 3885) 53.470 1352,859)
Net assats acquired ”237;011_ *_:14._530 1,312,381
5. REVENLIE
e = 31 Dec 2020 31 Dec 2019
Revenue o ﬂﬂ_ﬂ_ o V‘E‘Oﬂ
Rendernng of Services 108 598 14,867
[nstaltation Sernces projects 1.287 -
Pass Through Revenue 8634
Total 118,519 13,867

All revenue reiates 1o sales generated in UK

The various activities that contribute 1o the Group's revenue are related to the development of Telecom Infrastructure
Services with differemt kind of activities Teiecom Infrastructure Services provides a wide range of integrated network
infrastructureé services 1o enable access 1o the Group's wireless infrastructure by MNOs and other wireless
telecommunications and broadband network operators. allowing such operators to offer therr own telecommunications

services o their customers

« TiS Collacations. The services that the Group provides to its customers inciude infrastructure suppart services. which
0 turn include the access of nfrastruciure networks to 1elecommunications aperaters that use wireless technoiogwes
The Group acis as a neutral carrier for mobile network opérators and other telecommunications operators that normally
require complete access 1o the infrastructure network 10 provide services to the gnd customers
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« Engineering Services Technoiogical progress forces the Group to periodically carry out projects related to the
medification of the equipment of its sites. These works allow the different telecommunications operators 1o install the

equipment necessary to provide services to therr customers

« Pass through revenue: Additionally, the consolidated income statement for the year includes income from re-
charging costs related to infrastructure services activibes for mobile telecommunications operaters ta third parties

Contract assets and liahilities

The Company has recognised the following assets and liabilities in relation t¢ contracts with customers

1t Dec 2020 31 Dec 2019
£'000 E'G00

Contract assets
Current 1.958 1187
Nen-cureent - .
Total 1,358 1,187
Contract liabilities
Current (43,680) {227)
Non-current (57.982) {32,653
Total (101 662} (3.880)

Other than business-as-usual movements there were no significant changes in contract asset and liability balances dunng

the year

6. STAFF COSTS

The average monthly number of employees (including executive directors) was.

N 31 Dec 2020 31 Dac 2019

000 £°000

Operational feam T ) 198 g

Commercal team 23 1

Other functional areas 41 2

Total 263 12
Their aggregate remuneration comprised

21 Dec 2020 31 Deac 2019

£000 £'000

Wages and salaries 4603 1,195

Social Security Contributions 850 155

Other retributions & benefits 1,508 2

Total 6.961 1,362
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Directors' remuneration

The total amounts for directors’ remuneration in accordance with Schedule 5 to the Accounting Regulations were as
follows

31 Dec 2020 31 Dec 2019
e EOOO E000
—"g?‘slezes tees. I-JE'IUS._?S-, ;\:i_l;neats E-kin_d -0 T 345 N5
Amounts receivable under long-term incentive plans 130
Money purchase pension contributions - 2

Total 476 317

The highest pand ditector received £231k in emoluments and £46k amaunts recervable under fong-term incentive plans

7. OPERATING PROFIT

31 Dec 2020 31 Dec 2619
£'000 £'900

Cperaling lease chargg 129 39
Depreciation of praoperty, plant, and equipment 13.133 735
Depreciation of leased property. plant, and equipment 20.765 237
Amorusation of intangible assets 56635 7,261
Managemen! recharge fram fellaw Groun company 2714 1.427
impawment of mvestments in other Group companes 288 1
tmpairment of amounts receivabie from other Group companies (268)

The Group's audit fee for the financial statements for the year was £385,000 (2016, £98.640). No other services have been
pravided by the auditor

8. FINANCE COSTS AND INCOME

The finance income and costs mcurred by the company durnng the analysed penods are the followings”

Finance income - T T T 31 Dec 2026 31 Dec 2099
_ . ————— . _FOWO  £000
Positive exchange diff of the net nvesiment ia Group companies 268

nterest income - 139
Cther financal income 12

— s 8
Finance Costs - 31 Dec 2020 31 Dec 2013
) _ £000 £'000
IMerest Expense 9 645 798
Negative exchange diff of the mat mvestment «m Group companies 25 13}
Other finanwal expenses 288 t
1FRS16 interest Expense 11110 275
21.068 1.071
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9. TAX

UK Corporation tax is calculated at the weghted average rate of 19% (2019 19%) of the estimated taxable profit for the
year

3 Dec 2020 3t Dec 2019

£'000 £'000
Current ta_; o N B T
UK corporation tax
Current year - (586)
Pror yaar adjusinmenil {6,001}
T (s00n) (586)
Deferred tax
Ongination and reversal of timing differences (3.660)
Impact of change In tax (99) -
Recognition of deferred tax asset - 762
Prior year adjustment 6.635 507
2,B77 1,269
Tax charge / {credit) for the year - (3,124} 683

The charge / (credit) for the year can be reconciled to the profit in the Incame Statement as follows:

31 Dec 2020 31 Duc 2019
£m £m

Profit before tax (49.548) (2.627)
Tax at the UK Corporation tax rate of 19% (2019 19%) (8.414) (499)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for lax purposes 4804
Tax effect of Incame not taxable (280} -
Change in unrecognised deferred tax asset 1,430 -
Pnor year adjustment 635 507
Group relief recewed for nil consideration
Impact of change in tax rate {99} -
Deferred tax not previously recognised - 675
Total tax charge / (credit) for the year (3,124) ) 6583

The main rate of UK corporation tax remained at 19% dunng the perod and a 19% tax rate (2018 18%) has therefore
been used for the reconciliation of fotal tax. UK deferred tax has been valued at 19% (2019 17%) as this is the substantively
enacted rafe at the balance sheet date at which the deferred tax balances are forecast to unwind Due to the impact to the
group from changing tax legislatan, the decision was made with effect from 1 July 2017 1o pay for group relief. The prior
year UK corporation tax charge represents the payment made to other Group companies for the provision of tax losses by
way of group relief.

In the Spring Budget 2020, the Government announced that from 1 April 2020 the corporation tax rate would remain al
19.0% (rather than reducing to 17.0% as previously enacied). This new law was substantively enacted on 17 March 2020
and therefore the deferred tax i1s valued using 19% In March 2021, the UK government announced an increase in the
corporation tax rate from 19% to 25% with certain exemptions and phase in prowssions with effect from 1 April 2023.

As of 31 Decemnber 2020, the group has gross tax losses of £18,723,111. upon which Deferred Tax Assets have not been

recognised These have mostly arisen due to brought forward losses dating back to pre-2017, and due to forecasted losses
within these entities are unable to offset against any future profits.
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10. GOODWILL

The carrying amount of the Goodwill dunng the analysed periods 1s

3t Dec 2020 3t Dec 2019

o e N 4. £'000
Opening - -
Additons 550,655 -
Impairment . .
Carrying amount __ 550,665 -

At the end of éach reporting periad goodwill is assassed for impaiment based on a calculation of the fair value of the cash-
generating unit of their market value (price of similar, recent transactions in the market) |f the latter 1s higher There (s only
one cash-generating unit [CGU) Wentified n the UK Group and it is refated to the acquisition of the On Tower UK
companies

Prior to prepanng revenue and expense projectons, those projechons made as part of the impairment tests for the prior
year were reviewed 10 assess possible vanances

The fair value was calculated as follows

« The period over which the related investment is expected to generate cash flows was determined
» The respective revenue and expense projechons were made using the following general criteria and assumptons

» Far revenue trends were farecast assuming the consumer price index (CP1).

~ For expenses, trends were considered in Jight of expected changes in the respective CPIs ang the
projected  perfarmance of the pusiness
In addition, the Group considered the impact of infrastructure mamntenance and expansion to be carned
out. using the best estimates available based on the Group's experience and taking inlo account the
projected perfarmance of the actvity.
Current Market guidance given n relatian 10 the ratio of maintenance and expansion Capex 10 revenues
ampunts o £.3% ahd ¢ 5-10%., respechvely
~ Taxes have been aiso considered In the projections

A}

Al

The cash inflow projeciions based ¢n the revenue and expense projection rade as set forth above were discounted at the
rate resulting from adging. to the long-term cast of maney, the risk prermium assigned by the market to each country where
the activity takes place and the nisk premium assigned by the markel tc each business (over the long tenm in both cases).

Projections for the first years are generally based on the ciosing 2020 and on the most recent medium-term projection and.
after approximately year ten on the activity growth rate evident from the service contracts Projections covers a penod
higher than five years of cash flows after closing, due o the durabion of the existing service coniracts with customers,

The most sigmificant assumptions used in determining the fair value in 2020 wath the maost relevant intangible assets and
goadwill were as follows:

«  The discount rate considered for UK Group was 5.5%

¢ The activity growth rate considered was 3 0% per annum

+  The termmal g', consdered for was 2.5%

+ UK Group has been projected unti! 2040 in line with the duration of the sennice contracts m the Telecom Infrastructure
Services business segment
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11, INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Customer Customer Network TSA & FMA income Other
Relationships: Relationships: Location Contracts Rights  Intangible Total
Main Customers Airwave Assetls
£000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £000 £000 £000
Cost
At 31 Dec 2018 - - - - 146,955 - 146.955
Acquisition fram a subsidiary 1.265.591 11700 526,100 19,200 2953 1.852.544
Additions _ N - ; - 18 18
Dizposals R _ . . . 921) 9213
At 31 December 2020 1,265,591 1,700 526,100 19,200 146,955 2,050 1,971,516
Accumulated amortisation
At 31 Dec 2019 R . - 32,876 - 32 676
Amartisation o 31,640 292 13.152 480 10.854 211 56.635
At 31 Dacember 2020 31,640 292 13,152 4R0 43,535 211 89,210
Carrying amount
At 31 December 2020 _ 1,233,951 11,408 512,948 18,720 107,948 1,839 1,882,285
Al 31 December 2019 R . - - 114,279 - 114.279

As a resull of the acquisiticn of the On Tawer group the company has developed a Purchase Price Ailocation arising the
following assets with the costs and amortization and net book value cetaled above Customer Relationships: Main
Customers. Customer Relationships' Airwave, Network Location, TSA & PMA Contracts.

The "Custorner network service contracts” and "Network location” are intangible assets recognized followtng the Argiva
acquisition and are valued using the Multi-Penod Earnings methodology according tc the financial projections of the
different businesses affected This method considers the use of other assets in the generation of the projected cashflows
of a specific asset in order to isolate the economic beneht generated by the intangible asset.

The contribution of the other assets such as fixed assets. working capital, fabour and other intangible assets to the total
cash Rows is estimated through charges for contnbuting assets This adjustment s made to separate the valug of the
specific assets from the portion of the purchase price that has already been allocated to net tangible assets and other
intangible assets used Therefare, the value of intangible assets is the present value of cash flows after potentially
attributable taxes, net of the return on the fair value attnbutable to the tangible and intangible assets.

Acquired Customer Network Services Contracts and Network Location intangibles are amertised over the shorler of the
term of the corresponding ground lease taking into consideration lease renewals or up 1o 20 years, as the Company
considers these Intangibles to be directly related to the infrastructure assets

Other intangible assets are recognised at cost and are amortised over their estimated useful lives,
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12, PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Freehold Short Plant and Assets IFRS-16 Total
land and ieasehold equipment Under the ROU
buitdings. land and Caurse of assets,
buiidings Construct,
{AUC)
£000 £'000 £o00 €000 £000 £'000
Tcost T T o T
At 31 Dec 2019 1317 3 146 8.201 ; 2.345 25009
Acquisition of subsidianes 18,465 16,154 145 654 8957 251.759 453,680
Additions 574 348 239 24801 430550 146 509
Disposals & Redlassifications S 438 220 . (172) (190)
At 31 Dec 2020 29,680 23,084 154,313 33.758 384,655 625,489
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 Dec 2019 2358 74 3630 - 727 6,789
Depreciation 66 659 12,408 20765 33898
Disposals & Reclassifications (2,358} 2196 16} - @®n (B8
At 31 Dec 2020 (3] 2,929 16,199 - 21,425 40,619
Carrying amount
At 31 Dec 2020 TT2981& 7 20185 138114 33788 363057 564698
At 21 Dec 2019 I 3z T asTn 1618 18.220
13. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
. T T = 31 Dec 2020 31 Dec 2019
£000 £000
Current assels
VAT Recevables 17113 1,088
Trage recevables 18,255 1633
Contract assets 1958 1.187
Prepayments 23.863 3 489
Trade recewables wilh Group companies 103 33,562
Other receivables 60341 .
Total current receivables - 141.633 40,958
Non-current assets
Loans 2%
Prepayments 2.160
Total non-current receivables B i 2.1;1?_- I

Amcunts receivable from other group companies are unsecured, interest free and repayable on demang
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14. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS & LIABILITIES

Asset 31 Dec 2020 31 Dec 2019
ssets £'000 E'000

ibn-currenl assets

Deferred tax asseis 49 747 46
Liabilities 31 Dec 2020 31 Dec 2019
£'000 E£'000

Non-current liabilities
Deterred tax habiltes from PPA 344.049 -

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax labilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authonty and the Group intends to
settle its cumment tax assets and liabilities on a net basis. Temparary differences ansing in connection with interests In
associates are insignificant.

The recognised deferred tax asset is not considered 1o be matenally exposed to the performance of the Group based on
reasanably possible trading forecasts.

As of 31 December 2020, the group has gross tax losses of £18,723,111. upen which Deferred Tax Assets have not been

recognised These have mostly ansen due to brought forward losses dating back to pre-2017, and due to forecasted losses
within these entities are unable to offset against any future profits

15. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

31 Dec 2020 31 Dec 2019

) £'000 £'00)
Current liabilities
Payables related to Taxes & VAT 3.833 437
Trade payables 21,856 2830
Other payables 73,383 -
Liabiliies with employees 3.939 -
Trade payables wuh Group companies 20,198 -
Tatal current payables 128,259 ] 3,267 )

Trade payables and accruals principally compnse amounts outstanding for trace purchases and ongoing costs. The Group
has financral nsk management poiicies in place to ensure that all payables are paid within the pre-agreed credit terms

Amounts payable from other group companies are unsecured

The directors consider that the carrying amount of trade payables approximates to their fair value
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16. PROVISIONS

Provision related Decommissioning Other Total
with the PPA £'000 provisions £'000
_ B £'000 £000
Provisians
At 31 December 2019 0 68 0 68
Acquisition of a subsiciary 177.720 4652 1.245 183618
Changas in provisions policies 0 17 686 R 17 686
At 31 December 2020 177,720 22,406 1,246 201,372

Provisions are made for decommissioning and asset at risk costs where the Cormpany has an obligation to restare sites
and the cost of restaratian is not recoverable from third parties The provision is in relation to assets of which the remaining

useful econaomic life ranges up to three years

Other prowisions represent site management and compliance costs which are expected to be utitzed over the next one to

five years.

After the acquisthion of the Company by Cellnex UK Limited the Asset Rermoval Obligation policies has been updated to
be consistent with the Group policies. Decommissioning provisian is calculated using estimates of the present value of the
cash payments required to dismantie the assets, taking into consideration all the infarmation available at the balance sheet

date.

As discussed in note 3. provisions related with the PPA give nse to significant estimation uncertainty and therefore may

materially impact the results of the Group in future years.

Provisions are analysed between current and non-current based on expedted utihzation as follows

31 Dec¢ 2020

31 Dec 2019

7 £000 £'000
Currert liabifities
Other short-term provisions 1574 68
1,574 58
Non-current liabilities
Provigions from PPA - noncurrent 177,724
Other lang-term pravisions {(including Asset Removal Obligation — Decommissioning Costs) 22077
199,798 .
17. CONTRACT LIABILITIES
B 310ec2020 31 Oec 2019
_ N £'000 £'300
Current liabilities
Contract habiihes 43 680 227
Non-current liabilities
Contract labilties 57.982 3.653
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18. LOANS AND CREDIT FACILITIES

31Dec 2020 31 Dec 2019

£000 £'000
Current liabilities
Loans - 2130
Interests and payables related to the farmalization of the loans 2648 -
2,648 2,130
Non-current liabilities
Loans with thed parties 501 656
Loans with associated companies 185.000 -
776,656 -

19. LEASE LIABILITIES

During the adoption of IFRS 16 in 2019, the company recogrnised additional nght-of-use assets and additional lease
liabilities in relation to leases which had previously been ciassified as ‘operating leases’ unders the principles of IAS 17
‘Leases’

The lease liabilities were measured at the present value of the remaining lease payments, discounted using the Group’s
incremental borrowing rate and implicit rate identifiad in relation to the leases as at t January 2019

31 Dec 2020 31 Dec 2019

E£'000 ) £°000
Current liabilities
IFRS16 Short Term Lease Liability 26816 443
Non-cyrrent liabilities
IFRS 16 Long Term Lease Liability 84538 1430

For leases previously classified as finance leases the Group recognised the carrying amount of the lease assel and lease
liability immediately befare transition as the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset and the lease liabiity al the date of
initial application. No adjustments to the right-of-use assets and lease liabilities were required immediately after transition
to IFRS 16
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The Group does not face a significant iquidity risk with regard 10 iis lease liabllihes Lease habilties are monitored within
the Group's treasury function.

Opening

Lease Liabilties LT
tease Liabilities ST
Lease Liabilities

Movements of the year
Acguisition of a subsidiary
Sites Reassessment
Sites Prepayment
Adjustments

Payments

Interests Expense

Total

Lease Liabiites LT
Lease tiablines ST
Lease Liabilities

PRACTICAL EXPEDIENTS TAKEN

Lease Liabilities
£000

The group uses the following practical expedients permitted by the standard

1430
443
1,873

183,945
122.436
{196.000)
(2.086)
(19.931)
11118

84,539
26.816
111,355

the exclusion of nitial direct costs for the measurement of the nght-of-use asset at the date of imitial appucaton,
reliance on previous assessments of whether leases are onerous,
the exclusion of low value assets excludmng IT equipment. from recogmition as a nght-of-use asset or iability;

the actounting for operating leases with a remaining lease term of less than 12 months as at 1 July 2019 as short-

term leases

The Company has recogmzed the following interests on its income statement rejated to the IFRS-16 adjustment developed

Interests recognized in the income statement

Inferests an lease liabiges

31 Eec 2020

3 Dee 2019

£'000 £000
iritg 275
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20. SHARE CAPITAL

Share Capital
E

Allotted and authorised fully p-)_aid:

At 31% of December 2019

Share Capdatl Increase 2
Al 31™ of December 2020 - 4 ordinary shares (2019:2) of £1 each

On 7th July 2020, the Campany completed a Share Capital increase of 1 £1 share for £1.200,000 000ta complete the
acquistion of a competing company in the telecoms industry resulting in £1.199.999,999 share premium as per note 21

On 16th December 2020, the Company completed ancther Share Capital Increase of 1 £1 share for £235,200.000 resulting
in share prermum of £234.199,999 as per note 21

21. SHARE PREMIUM

Share Premium

B B £000
At 317 of December 2019 ' B 123.000
Share Premium Increases 1,435 200
At 31* of December 2020 1,558,200

On 7th July 2020. the Company completed a Share Capital increase of 1 £1 share for £1 1200,000,000tc completa the
acquisition of a competing company In the telecoms industry resulting in £1,199.995, 993 share premiurn as per note 21

On 16th December 2020, the Company completed another Share Capital Increase of 1 £1 share for £235,200,000 resulting
in share premium of £234 199,999 as per note 21.

22. 2019 REVIEW - UK GAAP REPORTED NUMBERS VS IFRS - 16 ADJUSTED NUMBERS

As explained, the Company has adopted during this year some accounting principles with a considerable rmpact in the
amounts published To ensure the traceabilty of the numbers published iast year and those detailed in this document it 1S
important to detail the impacts of the two most important accounting adjustments developed by the Company n the last
year |FRS-9 and IFRS-16 adjustments

BS /P&L Account UK GAAP (31 Dec 2019 £'000} IFRS (31 Dec 2019 £'000)
BS IFRS - 9 Insalvency Provision - 285
P&L IFRS - 9 Insalvency Provision Expense - (363)
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BS/P&L Account EK_GAAEQEE 2019 '000) RS (31 Dec 2919m
P&l Sites Rental 415 39
BS Right of Use Assels 2.345
BS Accomulated Depreciabon Right of Use Assels - {(727)
BS Lease Liabnives LT/ST {1,874)
P&L Depreciation RGU Assets - 237
P&L Interest Expénse 275
P&L Gains and |osses on P&L - (2)

23. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

Awarded connectivity contract in Brighton Mainline route

Cellnex UK has been awarded the 25-year concessionary contract by Netwark Rail 1o provide uninterrupled cellular
intemet. mobife reception and fibre services along the tength of the Brghton Mainiing route Cellnex UK will act as the
neulral host and pravide the infrastruciure to deliver continuous mobile cannectivity The service will provide targeted
coverage and capacity for the UK Mobile Netwark Operatars (MNOs).

The Bnghton Mainiine service runs 51 miles from London to the South Coast through some of the UK's most densely
populated areas. Mobile internet and connectivity between London and Brighton varies from a strong signal to no
connectivity at all because of the topography and the many tunnels and cuttings along the route.

Celinex UK will provide

+  Towers that will allow broadcasung of mobile signal along the rauway corridor.

e« A small number of base stalion hotels {equipent rooms) within close proxsmity to the railway 10 house telecoms
equipment.

= High-capacity fiber cunning from Victaria and London Bridge via East Croydan 1o Brighton. and

. Bespoke radic equipment to pravide umnterrupted coverage in the mamn Londan stations as well as the tunnels and
cuttings along the route

By improving customers’ travel experience and encouraging mere pecple to travel by train rather than by car. the project
will help reduce traffic 10 and around the M25 M23 and A23. leading to cleaner ar

24. CREDIT RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES

In order to minimise credit nsk. the Group has adopted a pohcy of only dealing with creditworthy counterparhies and
obtaining sufficient collateral. where appropriate. as a means of mitigating the risk of financial foss from defauits The Group
only fransacts with entities that are rated the aquivalent of invesiment grade. Investments in instruments, inciuding bills of
exchange. debentures and reteemable nole. where the counterparties have a minimum BBB- credit rating are considered
te have low credit nsk for the purpose of Impairment assessment The credit rating informataon is supphed by independent
rating agencies where available and. if not avanable, the Group uses other pubiicly available financial infarmation and its
own trachng records to rate its major customers The Group's exposure and the credit ratings of its counterparties are
continuously monitored, and the aggregate value of transachons concluded 1s spread amongst approved counterparties

Before accepting any new customer, a dedicated team responsible for the determimation of credit limits uses an external
credit scoring system to assess the potential customer's credit quality and defines credit imits by customer Limits and
scoring attributed to customers are reviewed and approved Wwice a year by the nsk management committee BG per cent
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of the trade recewables have the best credit scoring attributable under the external credit sconng system used by the
Group.

Credit approvats and other monitoring procedures are also in place to ensure that follow-up action 1s taken to recover
overdue debts Furthermore, the Graup reviews the recoverable amount of each trade debt and debt investment on an
individual basis at the end of the reporting period to ensure that adequate loss allowance 1s made for irrecoverable amounts
in this regard. the directors of the Company consider that the Group's credit nisk is significantly reduced Trade receivables
consist of a large number of customers, spread across diverse industnes and geographical areas Ongoing credit
evaluation is performed on the financial condttion of accounts receivable and, where appropriate, credit guarantee
insurance cover |s purchased

The credit nsk on liquid funds and denvative financial instruments is limited because the counterparties are banks with high
credit-ratings assigned by wnternational credit-ratng agencies

25. FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AT AMORTISED COSTS

The amortised cost of a financial asset 1s the amount at which the financial asset is measured at initial recognition minus
the pnncipal repayments, plus the cumulative amortisation using the effective interest method of any difference between
that imtial amount and the matunty amount, adjusted for any loss alowance The gross carrying amount of a financiat asset
1s the amortised cost of a financial asset before adjusting for any loss allowance

Financial assets and liabilities are intially measured at far value plus any directiy attrbutable fransaction costs.
Subsequent ta initial recognition, they are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

IFRS 9 contains three principal class)ficaton calegories for financial assels and liabilities. measured at amortised cost fair
value through ather comprehensive income (FVOCI) and fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL). A financial asset or
hability is measured at amortised cost if t meets both of the following canditions and s not designated as at FVTPL

« The asset/ liability is held within a business model whose objective I1s fo hald assets to collect / pay contractuat cash
flows: and

» The contractyal terms of the financial asset / lability give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of pnncipal and interest on the principal amount autstanding

Alt the financial assets or habilities detailed in these financial statements meets the two conditions detailed above

26. CONTROLLING PARTIES

The Company's immediate and ultimate parent is Cellnex Telecom S.A., whose registered address is Calle Juan Esplandiu.
11-13, 28007 Madrid, Spain, which is the smallest and largest group consolidating. The consclidated financial statements
OF Celinex Telecom can be accessed on the following link_https #www cellnextelgcom comienirvestor relationsannual-

repory
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27. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Balances and transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries, which are related partigs, have been ehminated on
consalidaton and are not disclosed i this note.  Transactions between the Group and its assoaatesqoint ventures are
discioseq below

Trading trapsactions
During the year group enthes emered (nto the foliowing transactions with related parties who are not members of the
Group

incomes from related parties (£000} Expenses with relatad parties (£900)
31/12/2020 311212019 311122020 311242019
Calinex Talgcom 5.A - 2714 1427

As mentioned Celinex Telecom is a related party of the Group The amounis awed by the Group to Celinex Telecom S A
are in concept of Management fees

The amounts cutstanding are unsecured and will be settled 1t cash No guarantees have been gwen or recéved No
provisions have been made for doubtful debts in respect of the amounts owed by related parties

Remuneration of personnel
The remuneration of personnel owed to employees who work in the Group and are paid by any related party, 1s set out
below in aggregate for each of the categories specified in JAS

Amounts owed by related parties {£ 000) _ Amounts pwed to related partieg (£'000)
3171212020 31/12:2019 3111 2:2020 3viziegrs
Celfnex Telecom S A - - 244 244
Retevision S A - 153 158
Tradia Telecom - - 342 342
Total 745 745
Loans to related parties
Amounts owed by related parties (£'000} Amounts awed to related parties (£'000)
31412/2020 31/12/2019 31112/2020 3111212019
Cellnex Finarice Co S A - - 187 042 2 045
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31 Dec 2020 31 Dec 2019
- Note £'000 E'000
Non-current assets
Investments 2 2405178 182,938
Trade and other receivables 3 2 159
Loans and Credit Facilites 4 3 3
2,407,340 162,941
Current assets
Trade and other recewvahles 3 9.210 422
Loans and Credit Facilities 5 1.000 33568
Cash and vasl: equivalents 386 789
10,596 34,778
Total asgets 2,417,936 217,719
Current Jiabilities
Trade ang other payables 6 (38.843) (40.315)
Laans and Credit Faciliies 4 (18,082) -
{56,925) (40,315)
Net current assets {46,329) (5,537)
Non-current liabilities
Loans and Credit Facilities a4 (776.924) (19)
. {776.924) {19}
Total liabilities (833,849) (40,334)
Net assets 1,584,088 177,385
Equity
Share capial 7 0 0
Share premium account 8 1,558.200 123 000
Retained earmings 25,888 54.385
Total shareholders ‘tunds 1,534,088 177,385

The notes on pages 53 to 57 form an integral part of the financial statements Registered number 05153745

As permitted by section 408 of the Compames Act 2006, the Cornpany s income statement has not been included in these
financial statements. The Company's loss for the financial year was £28.497k while in 2018 was £4 889k

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 14 January 2022 and were signed on its behaif by’

David Willam Crawford
Director
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Share Capital Share premium Reserves — Tatal
£008 £'000 £000  EG00
At 31 Cecember 2018 ] - 59,274 59,274
Loss for the financial year - - 14,889 (4.889)
issua of shares - 123.0060 - 123.060
At 31 December 2019 o i73n00 sasms 177388
Loss for the financial year - - (28 497) 128,407
Issue of shates . 1.435 200 . 1.435200
At 3t Decembar 202G 0 1588200 _ __ 25888 _ 1,584,088

On 7th July 2020 the Company completed a Share Premium increase of 1,199 999 £ and a Share Capital increase of
1 shared (valued in 1 £} ic complete the acquisition of a competing company in the telecoms industry

On 16th December 2020 the Company completed another Share Premium increase of 234 199¢ and a Share Capital
increase of 1 shared (vatued in 1 £ to fund a Contract with 8T for the acquisition of a portfatio of radic masts
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The separate financial staternents of the Company are presented as required by the Companies Act 2006 The Company
meets the definition of a qualifying entity under FRS 100 Application of Financial Reporting Requirements issued by the
FRC Accerdingly, these financiat statements are prepared in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 101 Reduced
Dhsclosure Framework

Cellnex UK Linuted (the Company) is a public company limited by shares incorporated in the United Kingdom under the
Companies Act 2006 and I1s registered in England and Wales. The address of the Company's registered office 1s shown
on page 2.

The Company's principal activity is to act as an investment holding company that provides management services to its
subsidiaries The Campany's immediate and ultimate parent is Cellnex Telecom S A.

As permifted by FRS 101, the Company has taken advantage of the disclosure exemptions avatlable under that standard
in relation to share-based payment, financial instruments, capital management. presentation of comparative information in
respect of certain assets. presentation of a cash flow statement, standards not yet effective. certain disclosures in respect
of revenue from cantracts with customers angd certain related party transactions

Where required equivalent disclosures are given In the consolidated financial statements.

These financial statements are presenied in pounds (£), which 1s the currency of the prmary economic environment in
which the Group operates and are rounded to the nearest £'00C.

The financial staternents have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the re-rmeasurement of certain finanoial
instruments that are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period

Investments 10 subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures are stated at cost less. where approprate. provisions for
impairment

The Company receives income from its subsidianes in the form of management fees, interest and dividends The Company
prowides management services on an ongoing basis to its subsidiaries. Subsidiaries receive the benefits of these services
as they are provided by the Company and therefore revenue is recognised manthly as these services are performed
Management fees are billed on 2 monthly basis and consequently there is no difference between the timing of payment
and the timing of revenue recognition

In the current year the Company has applhed a number of amendments to IFRS Standards issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (the Board) that are mandatorily effective for an accounting period that begins on or after 1
January 2020. Their adoption has not had any material impact on the disclosures or an the amounts reported in these
financial statements.

GOING CONCERN

The Company adopts the Geing Concerm basis in preparing its financial statements, based on the letter of financial support
covering twelve months from the signing of the Annual Report framn its ultimate parent undertaking, Celinex Telecom (as
at the date of signing).

It feads the Directar of the Group and Company to be confident that they will have adequate resources to continue in
operational ewstence for the fareseeable future As part of this assessment we have considered the impact of COVID-19,
and, based on the nature of the business. we da not beheve it will have an overall material adverse effect on our financial
position or cash flows

Critical accounting judgements or key sources of estimation uncertainty

There were no gritical accounting judgements that would have a significant effect on the amounts reccgnised in the parent
company financial statements or key sources of estimation uncertainty at the balance sheet date that would have a
significant sk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year.,

Transition to FRS 101 (reduced disclosure framework)

The company previously reported under FRS 102 and has transitioned to FRS 101 in the pericd. There has been ne
material impact of the transition
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2, INVESTMENTS

Al 1 January

Adations

impairments during the year
At 31 December

Company

Country

Cellinex UK Midco Lmited

Radosite Limited

Watersre Limited

Celinex Connectivity Sokutions { imiteqy
Cellnex UK Censuting Limited
London Connectivity Pannersmip Limied
Q54 Holdings Limited

On Tower UK Limited

On Tawer UK 1 Limited

0On Tower UK 2 Limied

On Tewer UK 3 Limied

On Tower UK 4 Limited

On Tower UK 5 Limied

Umited Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
Uented Kingdom
Unned Kingdom
Umited Kingdom
United Kingdom
Umted Kingdom
Urted Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kmgdom

United Kingdom

31 Dec 2020 31 Bec 2019

£000 £'000

182,938 59.938

2.222.240 123,000
240878  \B2.938_

Pringipal activitias
—Holdmg Company
Transmission sevices
Transrission services
{ransmission services
Transmission services
Dormant company
Dormant company
Transmission services
Transmigsion services
Transmission services
Darmant company

Transmussion services

Darmant company

Percentage M—omn;?y-s—h;ﬂt—ﬁw
100% (held directiy) -
100% (held indirectly)
100% {held indirectly)
100% (held mndwectly)
100% (held indwectly)
100% {held directiy)
100% (held drectly)
100% (held dwectly)

100% (held indirectly)
100% (heid indirectly)
100% (held indrectly)
108% (held indirecty)

100% (heid indwectly)

The Company owns 100% of the ardinary share captal of the companies detalled above All the subsidianes nave been
ncluded in the conpsafidation of Celinex Telecom and are Incorporated in the United Kingdom The addresses of these
companies are R+, 4th Floar. 2 Blagrave Street Reading, Londan, United Kingdam, RG1 1AZ

The directors believe that the carmying values of the ;nvestments are supported by the fulure earmngs of the subsidiaries.

3. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

31 Dac 2020 31 Dac 2019
S £'oca _£000
Current assets
Trade Recewables with Asstoiates 2798 7
Prepayments 1,650 415
Receivables associated with VAT 4.762 R
Total current receivables 9210 422
Non-currant assats
Prepayments 2.159 -
Total non-current receivables 2,159 -

Amounts receivable from ather group companias are unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand
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4. LOANS AND CREDIT FACILITIES

Asset ’ 31 Dec 2020 31 Dec 2018
ssels L _ £000 £'000
Current
Loans and Credit Facilities 1.000 33 568
Total Current Assets 1,000 331,568
Non-current
Loans and Credit Facilinas 3 3
Total Nen-current Assets 3 3
31 Dec 2020 31 Dec 2019
Liabilities - - o £'000 £'000
Current
Loans and Credit Facilties {15.434) .
Inferests (2,649} -
Tolal Current Liabilities {(18,082) -
Non-current
Loans with third parties (591.656) -
Loans with associated companies (185 268) k)]
Total Non-current Liabilities (776,924) (19)
Cellnex's borrowings 1s represented by a combination of loans and cradit facilities
5. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
31 Dec 2020 31 Dec 2019
o £'000 £'000
Current liabilities
Trade payables 2,525 1.103
Liabilites with employees 285 R
Trade payables with Group Companies 35,905 39 400
Fayables related 1o taxes 127 (197)
Total current payables 38,843 40,315

Amounts payable are unsecured and interest free and repayable on demand

The company participates in a group cash poaling mechanism whereby sumpius cash is made available to parent and
subsidiaries according to funding requirements The amounts outstanding are shown as trade and other payables amounts

with Group Companies.
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6. SHARE CAPITAL

$hare Capitai

£
Allotted and authorised fully paid: -
At 317 of Decamber 2019 2
Share Capital increases . 2
At 31% of December 2020 - 4 ordinary shares (2019 2) of £1 each - __—;

On 7th July 2020, the Company completed a Share Capital increase of 1 £1 share for £1.200.000.00010 complete the
acquisition of @ competing company in the telecoms industry resulting in £1 199 995,999 share premuum as per note 21

On 16th December 2020, the Company completed another Share Capstaf Increase of 1 £71 share for £235.200,000 resufting
in share premium of £234 199 999 as per note 21

7. SHARE PREMIUM

Share Premium

£900
At 317 of December 2019 123.00C
Share Premium increases 1.435 200
At 31 of December 2020 1,558,200

On Tth sly 2020, the Company completed a Share Prermuum increase of 1,189.998 £ to complete the acquisiton of 2
competing company in the telecoms industry

On 16th December 2020 the Company completed another Share Premium Increase of 234,199€

8. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Awarded connectivity contract in Brighton Maintine route

Cellnex UK has beer awarded the 25-year concessionary contract by Netwark Rad to provide uninterrupted
cellular mternet. mobile reception and fibre services along the length af the Brghton Maintine route Celinex UK
will act as the neutra) host and provide the infrastructure to deliver continuous mobile connectivity The service
will provide targeted caverage and capacity for the UK Mobile Netwark Operators (MNOs}

The Brighton Mainline sarvice runs 51 miles from Landon to the South Coast through some of the UK's most
densely papuiated areas. Mabde intecnet and connectvity between London and Bnghton vanes from a strong
signal to no connectivity at all because of the topography and the many tunnels and cutings along the route

Calinex UK wili provide

+  Towers that wil allow broadcastng of mabiie signal along the raiway corndaor

s A small numbaer of base station hotels (egupment reoms) within Slose proximity 10 the railway to house
telecoms egupment

+  High-capacty fiber running from Victona and London Bridge wia East Craydan to Brghton, and
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« Bespoke radio equipment to provide uninterrupted caverage in the main Landon statons as well as the
tunnels and cuttings along the route

By improving customers' travel experience and enceuraging more people to travel by train rather than by car the
project will help reduce traffic in and around the M25, M23 and A23, leading ta Cleaner arr
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